
Springerville Town Council Chambers - 418 E. Main St. Springerville, AZ
85938

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Springerville
Town Council and to the general public that the Council will hold a meeting open to the public at the
Springerville Town Hall, 418 East Main Street, Springerville, Arizona. The Town Council reserves
the right to adjourn into Executive Session in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-
431.03 (A)(1)(3)(4) and (7) for legal consultation on any of the following agenda items.

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 P.M.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
2. INVOCATION:
3. ROLL CALL:

Members of the Town Council or Legal Counsel that are unable to be present in person at a
scheduled Council meeting, may participate in the meeting by telephone or video conference.

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
This portion of the agenda is set aside for the public to address the Council regarding items, whether
they are listed on the agenda for discussion or not. However, the Council cannot engage in
discussion regarding any item that is not officially listed on the agenda for discussion and/or action
(A.R.S. §38-431.02(H).) Comments are limited to a 3 minute time period.

5. COUNCIL, MANAGER AND STAFF REPORTS:
Summary reports will be given on the items listed and no action will be taken on any matters
mentioned in the summary unless listed in the agenda. (A.R.S. 38.431.02(k)

a. Mayor & Council Reports: Summary Updates on committee meetings.
b. Staff Reports: Summary Updates
c. Manager Tim Rasmussen: Summary Updates & presentation(s)

6. CONSENT ITEMS:
a. Consider approval of the March 20, 2023 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.
b. Consider ratification and approval of the accounts payable register from March 13,

2024 through April 9, 2024.

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Wednesday, April 17, 2024 at 6:00 pm



7. PUBLIC HEARING: Pickleball court
Discussion and possible action to enter into a public hearing to take Council and public comment on
the use of AZ State Parks and Trails grant for a pickleball court at Pioneer Park.

8. PRESENTATION: Round Valley Pool Committee
Presentation, update, and proposal for partnership from the Round Valley Pool Committee.
Presentations shall not exceed 10 minutes.

OLD BUSINESS

9. NEW TOWN LOGO:
Discussion and possible action to approve a new Town logo.

10. 760 AIRPORT ROAD:
Discussion and possible direction regarding the Town-owned property at 760 West Airport Road.

NEW BUSINESS

11. ROUND VALLEY RODEO JR. TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:
Discussion and possible action regarding the Tourism Tax Fund request in the amount of $750 to
the Round Valley Rodeo Jr.

12. ROUND VALLEY RODEO TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:
Discussion and possible action regarding the tourism tax fund request in the amount of $750 by the
Round Valley Rodeo.

13. WHITE MOUNTAIN UTV EXPERIENCE TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:
Discussion and possible action regarding the Tourism Tax Fund request in the amount of $750 for
the White Mountain UTV Experience.

14. AZ ALPINE TRAIL TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:
Discussion and possible action on the request from the AZ Alpine Trail for Tourism Tax in the
amount of $2,000.

15. AZ DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AGREEMENT:
Discussion and possible action regarding the proposed agreement between the Town of
Springerville and the AZ Department of Housing regarding inspection services for manufactured and
factory built buildings.

16. FIRST ADDENDUM TO THE EAGAR/SPRINGERVILLE IGA POLICE AND FIRE:
Discussion and possible action on the first addendum to the January 24, 2023, Intergovernmental
Agreement for Police and Fire services between the Towns of Eagar and Springerville regarding
animal control matters.

17. ORDINANCE 2024-001: FIRST READING
Discussion and possible first reading of Ordinance 2024-001



An ordinance of the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Springerville, AZ Amending Title 6,
"Animals" of the Town of Springerville Town Code; providing for severability, providing penalties for
violations, and establishing an effective date.

18. EMPLOYEE MANUAL UPDATE:
Discussion and possible action regarding the proposed updates to the employee manual.

19. PROCLAMATION FAIR HOUSING MONTH:
Discussion and possible action to proclaim April 2024 Fair Housing Month in the Town of
Springerville.

20. UTILITY EASEMENTS:
Discussion regarding the utility easement issues for purposes of accessing town meters and
water/sewer lines.

21. LETTER OF REPRESENTATION A. WRYE:
Discussion and possible action regarding the letter from an attorney for A. Wrye. Council may go into
executive session pursuant to A.R.S § 38-431.03 (A) (3) .

22. ADJOURNMENT:
Submitted by: ___________________________________________

Posted by: _____________________________________________

Members of the public who only want to provide written comments can express their comments by
emailing the Town Clerk at kmiller@springervilleaz.gov to be read or summarized during the call
to the public. All comments must be submitted by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.): The Town of Springerville intends to comply with A.D.A. If
you are physically challenged or disabled and need special accommodations to participate in this
town meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (928) 333-2656 ext. 224 forty-eight (48) hours prior
to the meeting to arrange necessary accommodations.

Contact: Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk (kmiller@springervilleaz.gov (928) 333-2656 x 224) | Agenda published on
04/11/2024 at 8:30 AM



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT 
April, 2024 

 
March was a very busy month for the Community Services Department. 
 
Our Easter Luncheon was well attended to include youth from the Legacy Leadership Club, who came to 
visit with the seniors and present them with Easter bags. The chicken fried steak dinner was very popular 
and our kitchen staff pulled it off like champs! 
 
March for Meals was on Saturday, March 30th. We had 51 people who walked and another 12 who came 
to help out in other ways. The march raised $9,632.00 which will go towards the cost of our senior meal 
programs. We are so grateful to everyone who donated, walked, volunteered or helped out in other ways. 
We plan to hold this event each year going forward and look forward to having even more participants. 
 
We are about to wrap up our BINGOSIZE class, with Monday, April 8th being the last day. This has been 
a fun program and the seniors have really enjoyed it. We hope to plan another session this year. 
 
The financial literacy program through the U of A has reached it’s final week as well and we plan to 
partner with them again soon, to plan another round of classes. 
 
We took 15 seniors to the Renaissance Festival on March 23rd. Once again, they really enjoyed the trip 
and the turkey legs! 
 
We will be taking a group of seniors to Glenwood and Silver City on April 20thand we have a trip planned 
to the raceway in Show Low, for May. 
 
UPCOMING: 
April 15-16 – NACOG Meetings in Flagstaff 
May 1st – June 5th – Weekly Gardening Workshops 
 
March Community Assistance and Senior Services Counts: 

Senior & Meal Services 

  

Low Income Assistance Services 

Congregate Meals   373 Food Commodity Box (households)    423 

Home Delivered Meals   392 Food Cards      18  

Long Term Care Meals     24 Bus Pass        2 

Indigent Meals     40 Fuel Cards      15 

HEAD START Meals served 1257 Utility Assistance      46 

Total Meals Served 2086           

Senior Equipment       1 Electric Deposits/Rental Assistance        1 

Transportation Units   249 Appliance Repair/Replace        1 

Volunteer Hours   114 Senior Food Boxes    127 

             
Nutrition Education Program 

Location Age Group Curriculum # Participants # Classes 

Senior Center Seniors Nut Ed/ Food Demo 10 1 

RV Elementary 4th grade Cooking Matters 80 8 

RV Pre-School Pre K Color Me Healthy 24 2 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 

27 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 

 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
 

Report for March 2024 
 

Springerville Heritage Center & Casa Malpais Archaeological Park 
Community Event Planning 

 
• Visitor counts for the museum rose in the month of March.  There were 

approximately 180 visitors.   
 

• We began offering tours of Casa again in March.  However, the weather did 
not cooperate, with cold and snow.  19 people took the tour in March and 
revenue generated was $198.  If the weather warms up, the numbers should 
pick up some in April.   
 

• The majority of the artists have brought their pieces back in.  We are ready 
for tourism to begin picking back up. 
 

• As always, the feedback from patrons regarding the Museum and Casa was 
extremely positive.  
 

• A Capital Outlay Request for new inflatable items for Fall Fest has been 
submitted to Finance for fiscal year 24-25.  If approved, the money will be 
used to purchase a bounce house, a smaller obstacle course and some 
inflatable games. 



TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA STAFF REPORT  
MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORT FOR PLANNING AND ZONING 

APRIL 2024 

  

 

 
BUILDING:  

 

Permits Issued: 3 (1 for new home off of Becker Lane and 2 utility upgrades) 

Total Inspections: 5 (majority at the ER remodel) 

Certificate of Occupancy issued for the following:  

- Pet Parlor: Dog grooming business at 24 W. Main Street  

- Ditty’s: Restaurant (currently drive thru only) 279 S. Mountain Ave.  

- Kingbow Wings & Burgers: Restaurant 211 S. Mountain Ave.  

Please note that the Fire Department has been very helpful in coordinating their schedule and going with 

me on the C of O inspections.  

 

Addresses Established for properties in Town: 2 

 

Have had multiple conversations and meetings with property owners, relators, and potential property 

owners in regards to building permits and what is allowed in zoning code.  

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:  

 

April 9 Meeting: The Commission is continuing their review of Title 17 and review of old Conditional Use 

Permits. This month the following CUPs were officially revoked:  

• 225 W. Main St.-CUP was issued to allow manufactured home sales February 2013, the property is 

now being used for apartment buildings   

• 318 E. Main St.-CUP was issued to allow patio dining originally in May 2010, the property now is 

the Animal Rescue Thrift Store 

Hightower CUP Update: As part of the conditions of the permit a safety inspection and written 

permission from Apache County for the RV to be on the septic were to be submitted within the first 30 

days. The safety inspection was completed and passed on March 27th, I was accompanied by RVFD. 

Emails were received from Apache County Environmental Health stating that as long as the septic system 

is in working order the RV can discharge into it.  

 

CODE ENFORCEMENT:  

 

Working on getting written correspondence to some residences around town where issues have been 

reported.  

 

STAFF IS CURRENTLY WORKING ON:  

 

- Continuing review and organization of the physical files 

- Continuation of updating and creation of forms and applications 

- Research into procedure to contact owners of unsafe/dilapidated buildings in town 

- Working on updating International Building Code adopted by the Town. Currently we use 2015 codes 

would like to update to at least 2018 in the near future.  

- Building Inspection Certification: continuing to study for my B-1 Exam   



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
 
 Springerville Police Department Agenda Items and staff report 

 

  Round Valley Police Department March 2024  
 

Total Incidents                        288 

      Calls for Service                    91 

      Officer Initiated Incidents       197 

             Traffic Stops                     131 

             Other OIA Incidents              66 

   Bus/Building checks                    23   

 

   Total Officer Cases                     61 

          Accident                              3 

          Civil                                 0 

          Crime                                30 

          Death                                1 

 

   Total Misdemeanor & Felony Arrests  21   

      Misdemeanor Arrests                  15 

             Adult                              13 

             Juvenile                            2 

      Felony Arrests                         6 

             Adult                              6 

             Juvenile                           0                         

Citations                                44 

      Civil - Moving Violation              18 



      Civil - Non-Moving Violation          8 

      Criminal - Moving Violation          3 

       

 

1. General Information  
     
We attended the Association pf Property ad Evidence Training. 
Conducted interviews or the animal control position.  
 
 
CURRENT 

Chief Merrill 
Lt. Bevington 
Sgt. Holmes 
Officer Gleeson 
Officer Thomas Scruggs  

RESERVE OFFICERS 

Walker Richardson 

VOLUNTEERS 

Six (5)   

HIRING PROCESS UPDATE: 

LATERALS (interviewed and in the process to be hired) 

None 

RECRUITS (cleared for/attending the academy) 

• Cadet Matthew Ryan started the academy on 01/29/2024 and is scheduled to 

graduate 06/14/2024.    

INTERVIEWED (waiting on background) 

• Cole Roosma (Entry level) Currently lives in Show Low, AZ. Panel interview, 

physical abilities test and written exam completed, and is moving on to 

background investigations.  



• Simeon Rivera (Entry level) Panel interview, physical abilities test and written 

exam completed, and is moving on to background investigations.  

  

Dayson W Merrill, Chief of Police 

Town of Springerville Police Department 
418 E Main Street 
Springerville, AZ 85938 
 

 

 

 

 





TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:   Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
DATE:    4/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Consent Items

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

 

I move we approve consent items 6a and 6b as presented.  

 

Or I move we do not approve this item.  

 

Or I move we table this item.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

See attachments  

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  



Springerville Town Council Chambers - 418 E. Main St. Springerville, AZ
85938

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Springerville
Town Council and to the general public that the Council will hold a meeting open to the public at the
Springerville Town Hall, 418 East Main Street, Springerville, Arizona. The Town Council reserves
the right to adjourn into Executive Session in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-
431.03 (A)(1)(3)(4) and (7) for legal consultation on any of the following agenda items.

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 P.M.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Minutes:
Mayor Reidhead called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
Lieutenant Bevington led the pledge of allegiance.

2. INVOCATION:

Minutes:
Pastor Bob Falquez of the Community Presbyterian Church offered the invocation.

3. ROLL CALL:

Minutes:
The Town Clerk completed the Roll Call.
Present: Shelly Reidhead, Mayor; Richard Davis, Vice-Mayor; Douglas Henderson, Councilor;
Donald Scott, Councilor; Florencio Lozoya, Councilor
A quorum is present.

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Minutes

Wednesday, March 20, 2024 at 6:00 pm
Attendees: Staff: Town Manager Tim Rasmussen, Town Attorney Brandon
Kavanagh (Telephonically), Town Clerk Kelsi Miller, Finance Director Heidi

Wink, Chief of Police Dayson Merrill, Lieutenant Bevington, Officer
Gleeson, Officer Aragon



4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Minutes:
Terry Shove addressed the Mayor and Council. She reminded them and the community of the
March for Meals fundraiser on March 30th. The community center provides 26,000 meals yearly,
regardless of one's financial contribution to the meal. They operate off of 16 grants. They do not
turn people away. She has been volunteering to deliver meals for over 4 years, and it is evident
that the person delivering that meal may be the only person the receiver will be in contact with that
day. She encouraged everyone to support this event and sign her pledge sheet. Next, she invited
them to the community Easter celebration March 24th at 5:00 pm in the Round Valley High School
Auditorium.
Barry Williams a Springerville resident addressed the Mayor and Council. He thanked Kelsi Miller,
the Town Clerk for her hard work on the new website it looks great. He encouraged everyone to
go check it out.
Lane Scott addressed the Mayor and Council. He explained a few months back he presented on
the idea of housing for Veterans. He has come up with a possible solution to help them, a tiny
house village.

5. COUNCIL, MANAGER AND STAFF REPORTS:
a. Mayor & Council Reports: Summary Updates on committee meetings.

Minutes:
Mayor Reidhead report that she, Manager Rasmussen, and Councilor Scott attended an
economic development meeting for coal transition in St. Johns. They were informed about
many different grant opportunities.
Councilor Don Scott reported on a Real AZ meeting in Snowflake regarding economic
development and housing. They are also continuing discussions about internet. There is a
website being built that will map what areas are served and underserved. Those with
speeds under 100 mb will fall into the underserved category.

b. Manager Tim Rasmussen: Summary Updates & presentation(s)

Minutes:
Manager Rasmussen reminded the Council to check out the new website. He reported that
department budget meetings have begun, they met with the Police Department today.
Theirs needed to be first so they could have a shared services committee meeting.
Tomorrow, he plans to meet with the shared services committee to discuss the possibility of
hiring a second animal control officer on a parttime basis. Next, he invited everyone to the
Community Centers Easter lunch Thursday March 28th. He reported that he started working
on the Emergency Operations Manual, applied for two $25,000 grants for the master plan
and the grant match for the AMR meters. Next meeting he is hoping to discuss proposed
changes to the fee schedule and changes to the employee manual. Currently we have a
$400,000 grant for the airport fencing that Kimley-Horn Engineers are working with us on,
we hope to bring an update on this soon. He reported on the possible Maverick coming to
town. Maverick had all the property under escrow then had a return of investment study
done. That study indicated the demolition costs and asbestos abatement would cost too



much and they emailed Tim saying they were pulling out of the project. A few days later they
reached out to the Town again because the estimates on demolition were now anticipated
lower. They are going to complete another return on investment study with the updated
figures and contact the Town. Lastly, he reported the we are getting ready to go out for bid
on the AMR meters.

c. Staff Reports: Summary Updates

Minutes:
Chief of Police Dayson Merrill thanked the Council for the continues support of the police
department. For being short staffed the police department is running well. He introduced
newly sworn officer Sidney Aragon. Staffing for the department right now includes 7 sworn
officers, 1 cadet in the academy, and 1 possibly going in July. They are also going through
the background process on a potential lateral officer. Amy is now by herself in the office,
Zona retired earlier this month. She was a huge asset to Eagar Police Department for years
and Round Valley Police Department. Our animal control officer has resigned, and we are
currently advertising for the position. We hope to set up interviews for next week. Other
updates included they attended a job fair and thanked the school for their continues
support.
Finance Director Heidi Wink reminded Council that budget sheets are due by March 22nd.
Town Clerk Kelsi Miller reminded the Council and the public that the filing period for the
2024 Primary Election ends April 1st at 5:00 p.m.

6. CONSENT ITEMS:

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Richard Davis to
approve consent items 6a, 6b, and 6c as presented.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

a. Consider approval of the February 28, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes.
b. Consider approval of the February 20,2024 Special Meeting Minutes.
c. Consider ratification and approval of the accounts payable register from February 14,

2024 through March 12, 2024.
7. ANNUAL AUDIT PRESENTATION:

Minutes:
Scott Graff with Colby & Powell, PLC gave the fiscal year audit presentation for the year ending
June 30, 2023. He explained the responsibilities of the auditors and the responsibilities of the
Town. It was explained what the financial statements are included as well as the internal control
report. Springerville had a clean audit report and is doing a great job. He reviewed the 5-year
General Fund amounts including revenues, expenditures, and fund balance. Springerville has
increased the fund balance from 2019 to current. Next, Mr. Graff reported on the net position and
the increase in the net position of $957,463. He reported on the 5-year comparison of the utility
funds, water, and wastewater. The net position of the water fund has increased by $176,158 and
an increase in the sewer fund of $36,017. It was discussed that at one point sewer was in the red



and had to borrow money from the water fund. That has been paid off and is now building up its
own fund balance. The Council had no questions.

NEW BUSINESS

8. AZ ALPINE TRAIL DONATION REQUEST:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Councilor Scott mentioned that first they only wanted a letter of support and now
they are asking for money. The council discussed they felt this would be more appropriate to come
from the Tourism Tax fund.
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Vice Mayor Richard Davis to not
approve the donation request as presented.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

9. WHITE MOUNTAIN UTV EXPERIENCE SPONSORSHIP REQUEST:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: The Council reviewed the donation/sponsorship request from the White Mountain
UTV Experience. Councilor Scott feels this request should also be coming from the Tourism Tax
fund. Council discussed the process of sending this donation request to the Tourism Tax
Committee.
ACTION: Motioned by Vice Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor Doug Henderson to not
approve the donation request as presented.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

10. FALL FEST TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Manager Rasmussen explained this item. He started by saying Ms. Hummel did
the face painting last year, it was very popular with the kids at fall fest. She volunteered to do it
again in 2024, but asked the Town would cover the cost of materials this year.
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Councilor Florencio Lozoya to
approve the tourism tax donation request to Danielle Hummel in the amount of $257.80.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

11. RIB THROWDOWN TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: None
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Don Scott, seconded by Councilor Doug Henderson to approve
the Tourism Tax Fund donation in the amount of $750.00 to the Rib Throw Down.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

12. ANNUAL AVIATION EXPO TOURISM TAX FUND REQUEST:



Minutes:
DISCUSSION: The Council discussed this donation request. This is the 12th annual event and a
huge fundraiser for the animal rescue. Manager Rasmussen invited the Council and the public to
the event to, he explained there are vintage airplane rides, vendors, etc. Larry and Lillian Hill of
Skydive Arizona put on this incredible event.
ACTION: Motioned by Vice Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor Florencio Lozoya to
approve the Tourism Tax Fund donation request in the amount of $750.00 to the Round Valley
Animal Rescue for the Aviation Expo.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

13. NEW TOWN LOGO:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Manager Rasmussen gave a history of the reason behind looking into a new logo.
When we had the Towns website redone we needed the logo in a certain format that we did not
have it in. We paid to have it converted into the right format and discovered she is also able to
create new logos. In the past, we have had difficulties with our current logo due to the complexity
of it and with it having 7 different colors. He sent Council 20 conceptual ideas and has been given
feedback. He presented them with 8 concepts. Mayor Reidhead expressed she liked concept 8,
just needs a little work. Councilor Lozoya expressed he likes concept #7. Council directed the
Manager to work on concept 8 and bring it back.

14. UTILITY EASEMENTS:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Manager Rasmussen gave the history of this item. In years past the Town had
utility easements with water lines, meters, and sewer lines in these easements with access for
reading meters, maintenance, and for water or sewer line issues. With the WIFA grant for AMR
meters, we need access to the meters in the El Cajon Estate area. Staff should not be jumping
fences to access our meters in our easements. If we ever had a water break we would not be able
to get equipment in to repair it. But after some additional digging, we found there may be some
issues with easements and recordings of them. Staff is requesting to table this item until further
research is done.
Mayor Reidhead declared this item tabled.

15. 560 N. MAIN STREET:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Manager Rasmussen explained that the property at 560 N. Main is jointly owned
by Springerville and Eagar. It has been vacant for years and costing the towns money. We
obtained a fair market value appraisal for $250,000 and we are asking for permission to go
forward with that amount being the minimum bid amount. Councilor Lozoya asked who would get
the money if it sold. Manager Rasmussen said the Towns would split it.
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Vice Mayor Richard Davis to
approve the sealed bid sale of 560 N Main Street using $250,000 as the fair market value and
minimum bid.



Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

16. COMMUNITY BROADBAND ADVOCATES/EDA GRANT:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Manager Rasmussen explained this item started at the last Council meeting when
a contract was approved with Community Broadband Associates (CBA) to help find us grants for a
General Plan through the Economic Development Admin. It was discovered the EDA can not fund
a General Plan, however, they could help us get a grant for the planning, design, and engineering
of the infrastructure of a planned business area in the designated Industrial Park. Currently, we do
not have the infrastructure in our industrial park to bring in businesses. We are looking to change
the scope of work for CBA. The Council discussed the industrial park and whether it falls within
the footprint of FAA control. They discussed the need for infrastructure to grow the park regardless
of aviation needs or not.
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Vice Mayor Richard Davis to
approve Community Broadband Advocates LLC to work with the Economic Development
Administration for a grant to plan, design, and engineer utilities to the Planned Industrial Park
contingent on further discussions with the FAA.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

17. 2024 ARBOR DAY PROCLAMATION:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Council discussed where they would like to plant trees this year for Arbor Day and
replace the trees that had to be cut down on South Mountain Ave. They discussed shrubs vs
trees.
ACTION: Motioned by Vice Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor Don Scott to approve
the 2024 Arbor Day Proclamation.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

18. ADJOURNMENT:

Minutes:
The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.
 
 
___________________________________________.
Shelly Reidhead, Mayor
ATTEST:
 
___________________________________________.
Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and copy of the minutes of the Springerville Town



Council in a Regular Council Meeting on __________________________. I further certify that the
meeting was duly called and a quorum was present.

                                               Dated this _______ day of ____________, 2024

 
______________________________________________________. Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk

Members of the public who only want to provide written comments can express their comments by
emailing the Town Clerk at kmiller@springervilleaz.gov to be read or summarized during the call
to the public. All comments must be submitted by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.): The Town of Springerville intends to comply with A.D.A. If
you are physically challenged or disabled and need special accommodations to participate in this
town meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (928) 333-2656 ext. 224 forty-eight (48) hours prior
to the meeting to arrange necessary accommodations.

Contact: Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk (kmiller@springervilleaz.gov (928) 333-2656 x 224) | Minutes published on
03/25/2024 at 5:03 PM

















































































Town of Springerville 
Public Hearing Regarding Use of 
Arizona State Parks and Trails

The Town is applying for a grant to receive approximately 
$300,000 in FY24 for four to eight

Pickle Ball Courts in Pioneer Park.
A public hearing will be held at the regular Town Council 
meeting at 6:00 p.m. on April 17, 2024, at Springerville 
Town Hall 418 East Main Street Springerville, AZ 85938 
to discuss the potential project and potential funding with 
the community. 

  To review project proposals, file grievances or learn 
more about the Arizona State Parks and Trails Grant 

program contact the following: 
Tim Rasmussen, Town Manager 

Town of Springerville  • 418 East Main St. 
Springerville, AZ 85938 

928-333-2656 Ext. 226 • Fax: (28-333-5598 
Persons with disabilities who require special 

accommodations may contact Kelsi Miller at the above 
location at least 48 hours before the hearing. 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 
“GATEWAY TO THE WHITE MOUNTAINS”

418 E. MAIN STREET, SPRINGERVILLE, AZ 85938 • 928-333-2656











































TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk 
DATE:    04/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Tourism Tax Fund Request 
  Round Valley Rodeo Jr.   

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request in the amount of 

$750 to the Round Valley Rodeo Jr.   

 

OR  

 

I move we do not approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the 

Round Valley Rodeo Jr.   

 

OR  

 

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the Round 

Valley Rodeo Jr.  in the amount of $_______________.  

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

The tourism tax committee met regarding this application on 3/28/2024 and 

has made the recommendation to approve. 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  









TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk 
DATE:    04/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Tourism Tax Fund Request 
  Round Valley Rodeo 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request in the amount of 

$750 to the Round Valley Rodeo.   

 

OR  

 

I move we do not approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the 

Round Valley Rodeo.   

 

OR  

 

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the Round 

Valley Rodeo.  in the amount of $_______________.  

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

The tourism tax committee met regarding this application on 4/11/2024 and 

has made the recommendation to approve. 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  



' ' TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 
Toui-lsm Tax Committee 

Application for Funds 

Please be as specific as possible when completing_ this form. 

DATE(S) OF EVENT: -, '7 ? '5 JQ,}'7 DATE OFAPPLXCATXON: 3,l;)Cf (). 

($ u= DATE 1/· /"l,J 
AMOUNT OF FUNDING REQUESTED: 7 sl) -- FUNDING REQUIRED: v / o'7 

Name of Event, Group or Promotion: 

Make Check Payable to: 

Malling Address: 

Tax Identification Number: 
(Please complete and return attached W-9) 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 

Name of Contact: 

Mali/ng Address: 

Telephone Numbers: 

Alternate Contact & Phone Number: 

All appllcatlons must be turned in to the Town of Springerville one month before the date of 
the event. 

Once placed on the agenda, the application will be reviewed by the Tourism Tax Committee, If 
approved, the application wlll be forwarded to the Town Council with a recommendation for 
funding. A final decision on funding will be made by Council, Council meetings are held the 
first and third Wednesdays of each month. Items are placed on the agenda 011 the Wednesday 
preceding the meeting. 

RESERVED FOR COMMITTEE/TOWN USE 

1: ls this request already considered in the current year town budget? 
2. Does this request fail into the guidelines of tourism and economic development?
3, ls there sufficient money In the fund to cover this request? 

SPRINGERVILLE 
TOURISM TAX COMMITTEE 

SPRINGERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

By majority vote, this request has been 
Approved: 

By majority vote, this request has been 
Approved: 

Denied: Denied:

Amount: Amount: 

Date: Date: 

Chair/Vice-Chairperson: _________ _ Mayor/Vice-Mayor: __________ _ 

PLEASE COMPLETE THE QUESTIONS ON THE NEXT PAGE OF THE APPLICATION 





TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk 
DATE:    04/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Tourism Tax Fund Request 
  UTV Experience  

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request in the amount of 

$750 to the White Mountain UTV Experience.  

 

OR  

 

I move we do not approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the 

White Mountain UTV Experience.  

 

OR  

 

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the White 

Mountain UTV Experience in the amount of $_______________.  

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

White Mountain UTV Experience requested a donation from the Town 

Council. At the March meeting Council directed staff to have them apply for 

Tourism Tax funds. The Committee has approved a $750 donation 

 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  











TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk 
DATE:    04/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Tourism Tax Fund Request 
  AZ Alpine Trail  

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request in the amount of 

$2,000 to the AZ Alpine Trail inc.  

 

OR  

 

I move we do not approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the AZ 

Alpine Trail Inc.  

 

OR  

 

I move we approve the Tourism Tax fund donation request to the AZ Alpine 

Trail in the amount of $_______________.  

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

AZ Alpine Trail Inc. requested a donation from the Town Council. At the 

March meeting Council directed staff to have them apply for Tourism Tax 

funds. The Tourism Tax Committee will only approve donations for up to 

$750, therefore this donation request is coming directly to the Town Council 

for consideration.  

 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  















TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Stormy Palmer, Planning & Zoning Director 
DATE:    April 17, 2024 
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT-Department of Housing: 

Inspection Services Agreement

 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
 
I move that we approve or do not approve the Agreement with the State 
of Arizona Department of Housing and the Town of Springerville to Enforce 
Installation Standards for manufactured and factory-built buildings.  
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 

The Town has entered into agreements of the same purpose with ADOH in 
the past. ADOH has updated their term limits from 5-year terms to 3-years.  
 
The purpose of the agreement is to assist ADOH in maintaining the 
standards of quality and safety for manufactured homes, factory-built 
buildings, mobile homes and their installation, A.R.S. §41-4002. ADOH 
enters into the agreements with local agencies to enforce installation 
standards in their respective jurisdictions and keep them consistent with 
ADOH installation standards, A.R.S. §41-4004(A)(5). 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 
MEMORANDUM  



 

1  

 

 

INSPECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

BETWEEN 

 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 

 

AND 

 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

 

TO ENFORCE INSTALLATION STANDARDS 

 

This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this ______day of ______________, 

______, by and between the ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING (“ADOH”) and the 

Town of Springerville (“Agency”). 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 41-4002 the purpose of 

ADOH is to maintain standards of quality and safety for manufactured homes, factory-built 

buildings, mobile homes, and the installation of the same. 

 

 WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 41-4004 (A) (5) directs ADOH to enter into agreements with local 

enforcement agencies to enforce the installation standards in their respective jurisdictions 

consistent with the installation standards of ADOH; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of both parties to eliminate unnecessary duplication of 

inspections regarding installation standards within the Agency’s jurisdiction; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises and 

undertakings herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as 

follows: 

 

1. Monitoring and Enforcement.  For the duration of this Agreement, the Agency will monitor 

and enforce the installation standards set forth in A.R.S. § 41-4004 (A)(4) and Arizona 

Administrative Code (A.A.C.), including but not limited to, R4-34-102, R4-34-204, R4-34-606 

and R4-34-801 as they apply to installation standards and accessory structures. 

 

2. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years from the date of this 

Agreement. 
 

3. Standards of Performance.  In exercising the authority delegated hereunder the  

Agency shall perform to the same standards of performance that the law imposes upon ADOH in 

exercising the authority described in section 1 hereof.  In addition, the Agency shall not approve 

any installation unless the installer affixes a State Insignia of Approval as required by A.A.C. R4-

34-802 (A) and pays to the Agency the fee established by ADOH pursuant to the authority by 

A.A.C. R4-34-501. 

 

 

 



 

2  

 

 

 

 

4. Reporting.  The Agency in this Agreement shall complete electronic reporting to ADOH 

via an online portal. A copy of each issued permit and corresponding installation inspection reports 

for mobile homes, HUD manufactured homes or factory-built buildings shall be submitted within 

the portal. All permit and inspection activity shall be on submitted once per week if not reported 

to ADOH on a daily basis.  

 

5. Fees Charged by the Agency.  Permit fees charged by the Agency shall be the same 

as the Fee Schedule created by ADOH pursuant to its authority under A.R.S. § 41-4010 (A) (4), 

A.R.S. § 41-4010 (A) (5) and A.A.C. R4-34-501 and no more than permitted by R4-34-801(E).  

All fees collected by the Agency shall be kept by the Agency as compensation for the services 

performed by the Agency under this Agreement.  The Agency shall not be entitled to any other 

compensation for services rendered by it under this Agreement. 

 

6. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause by 

giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice prior to the date of termination.  Additionally, 

ADOH may terminate this Agreement immediately and without notice, if ADOH determines that 

the installation standards required in the Agreement are not being maintained, or that local fees are 

not consistent with the inspection fees established by the Board of Manufactured Housing.   

 

7. Qualifications of Personnel.  The personnel that perform the functions delegated to  

the Agency in paragraph 1 hereof shall each have no less than one year of experience as a building 

code inspector or manufactured housing installation inspector. 

 

8. Inspector Training.  All Agency Inspectors performing under this Agreement shall 

participate in required initial and/or periodic training as set and coordinated by the State.  

 

9. Duties of ADOH.  Should ADOH require inspections of any portion of the installation  

of mobile, manufactured homes, accessory structures or factory-built buildings not required by the 

Rules referred to herein and not covered under this Agreement, ADOH shall be responsible for the 

inspections and enforcement thereof. 

 

10. Notices.  All notices shall be mailed or delivered to the party to receive such notice to  

the following address. 

 

a. If intended for ADOH to: 

 

Arizona Department of Housing 

Manufactured Housing and Building Division 

1110 West Washington, Suite #280 

Phoenix, AZ 85007-2935 

 

 

Attn: Tara Brunetti  

Title: Assistant Deputy Director 

Phone: (602) 771-1035 

 



 

3  

 

 

b. If intended for Agency, to: 

 

Town of Springerville 

418 East Main Street 

Springerville, AZ 85938 

 

Attn: Tim Rasmussen 

Title:   Town Manager 

Phone: (928)333-2656 

 

11. Interpretation and Amendments.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement  

between the parties hereto.  This Agreement shall not be amended or modified in any manner, 

except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 

 

12. Headings.  Headings are for convenience only and are not to be construed as part of  

this Agreement. 

 

13. Invalidity of a Term.  The parties agree that in the event any term, covenant or 

conditions herein contained should be held to be invalid or void, the invalidity of any such term, 

covenant or condition shall in no way affect any other term, covenant or condition of this 

Agreement. 

 

14. Dispute.  In the event of any dispute between the parties under this Agreement, the  

parties agree that they shall submit the dispute to arbitration pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 12-133(D) and 

12-1518. 

 

15. Inspection and Audit.  Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and 35-215, all books, accounts, 

reports, files and other records relating to this Agreement shall be subject at all reasonable times 

to inspection and audit by the State of Arizona for five (5) years after completion of this 

Agreement.  Such records shall be produced at the Auditor General’s Office or such other office 

as the parties hereto may mutually agree within a reasonable time after request. 

 

16. Conflict of Interest.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to  

cancellation by the Governor of Arizona pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the provisions of which are 

incorporated herein. 

 

17. Prohibition Against Discrimination.  In the event that it applies, the parties agree to  

comply with the Arizona Governor’s Executive Order No. 2009-09. 

 

18. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in  

accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona.  The exclusive venue for any litigation, 

arbitration, administrative hearing or the like concerning this Agreement or any matter arising 

therefrom shall be in Maricopa County, State of Arizona. 

 

19. Unavailability of Funding. Every payment or financial obligation of the parties under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment 

of such obligation.  If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, 

this Agreement may be terminated by any party at the end of the period for which funds are 



 

4  

 

available.  No liability shall accrue to any party in the event this provision is exercised, and neither 

ADOH nor Agency shall be obligated or liable for any future payments nor for any damages as a 

result of termination under this paragraph. 

 

20. E-verify. To the extent applicable under A.R.S. § 41-4401, each party and its respective 

subcontractors warrant compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to 

its employees and compliance with the E-verify requirements under A.R.S. § 23-214(A). Each 

party has the right to inspect the papers of the other party or its subcontractors participating in this 

Agreement and may result in the termination of the Agreement by a non-breaching party under 

terms of this Agreement. 

 

21. Antitrust Violations.  To the extent applicable, Agency assigns to the Department any claim 

for overcharges resulting from antitrust violations to the extent that such violations concern 

materials or services supplied by third parties to the Agency toward fulfillment of this Agreement. 

 

22. Boycott of Israel.  To the extent applicable and permitted by law, Agency warrants that it 

is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the contract to not engage in, a boycott 

of goods or services from Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01, as may be amended from time 

to time. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto agree to carry out the terms of this Agreement and 

have executed this Agreement the day, month and year first written above. 

 

 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING: TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE: 

      

Names:  ______________________________ Name:       

  Tara Brunetti, Asst. Deputy Director                          Name, Title 

             Arizona Department of Housing   

       ATTEST:      

                       Name, Title                    

 

    APPROVED this ______ day of ___________________, ______. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





















































































II l�illllf 111�1�11111111111111 i���l{llf ruill+lil 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

Springerville Town Council 
Tim Rasmussen, Town Manager 
March 27, 2024 
Employee Manual Changes 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move we adopt the Town of Springerville Employee Manual dated 4-17-
2024. 

OR 

I move we DO NOT adopt the Town of Springerville Employee Manual 
dated 4-17-2024. 

STAFF REPORT 
Thirteen months ago, when I came back to the Town the staff came to me 
about some items that were not working correctly in the Employee Manual. 
In the next six months, I also came across some things that were changed 
by the Town but not amended in the Employee Handbook. Staff also came 
across some ideas that I support and would like to make a 
recommendation to the Mayor and Council to adopt these changes 
presented to you. 

Town Staff has provided you with a redlined copy of the proposed 
Employee Handbook dated 4-17-2024. 



T.QWN.9,f §_g:g'.
INGERY.Ht��-

"GATEWAY TO THE WHITE lVJOUNTAlNS 

TO: All Hourly Pald Employees 

FROM: Chris Collopy, Town Manage(@ 

DATE:Augustl0,2022 

RE: Holiday and Overtime 

II 

From this date forward, all town observed holidays will be considered hours worked in calculation 
overtime. 

What this means to you is, if you are working during the week with a holiday, and you are required to 
be called out to work hours beyond your normal work hours, you will receive overtime pay beyond 40 
hours. You will no longer receive straight time for these extra hours because the holiday will be 
treated as time worked. 

Keep in mind, the use of vacation and sick time during these weeks with a holiday will lower your 
hours worked, and therefore, making any extra hours worked during that week straight time. 

The administrative staff and the public appreciate your efforts in keeping the Town running and feel 
you should be compensated for emergencies on holiday weeks. 

4 l 8 East Main Street 
Springervi Ile, Arizona 85938-5002 

928-333-2656
w11•1v.springcrvillcaz.gov 



  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Springerville 
Employee Manual 

 
ADOPTED April 19, 2023 

April 17, 2024



  

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 
 

THIS MANUAL IS DESIGNED TO ACQUAINT EMPLOYEES WITH THE TOWN AND 
PROVIDE SOME INFORMATION ABOUT WORKING HERE. THE MANUAL IS NOT ALL 
INCLUSIVE, BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE EMPLOYEES WITH A SUMMARY OF SOME 
OF THE TOWN’S GUIDELINES. THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED 
EDITIONS. 

 
EMPLOYMENT WITH THE TOWN IS AT-WILL. EMPLOYEES HAVE THE RIGHT TO END 
THEIR WORK RELATIONSHIP WITH THE TOWN, WITH OR WITHOUT ADVANCE NOTICE 
FOR ANY REASON. THE TOWN HAS THE SAME RIGHT. 

 
THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS MANUAL AND ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS MADE BY 
MANAGEMENT ARE NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT, 
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED; NOR ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR 
A SPECIFIC DURATION. NO REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN, OTHER THAN THE TOWN 
MANAGER, HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT 
FOR ANY SPECIFIED PERIOD AND SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING, SIGNED 
BY THE TOWN MANAGER AND THE EMPLOYEE. 

 
NO EMPLOYEE MANUAL CAN ANTICIPATE EVERY CIRCUMSTANCE OR QUESTION. 
AFTER READING THE MANUAL, EMPLOYEES THAT HAVE QUESTIONS SHOULD TALK 
WITH THEIR IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR OR THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT. 

 
IN ADDITION, THE NEED MAY ARISE TO CHANGE THE GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE 
MANUAL; EXCEPT FOR THE AT-WILL NATURE OF THE EMPLOYMENT, THE TOWN, 
THEREFORE, RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INTERPRET THEM OR TO CHANGE THEM, 
ALONG WITH ANY OTHER PROCEDURES, PRACTICES, BENEFITS, OR OTHER 
PROGRAMS OF THE TOWN, WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE. 

 

Welcome 
 
Welcome to the Town of Springerville (“Town")! We are delighted to have chosen you to join our team of 
dedicated professionals and hope you will enjoy a long and successful career with the Town. We take 
pride in our employees and the products and services we provide. We consider ourselves a hometown 
city where you want to live, work, and play. 
 
Please read this employee handbook ("Handbook") carefully immediately upon your hire and use it as a 
guiding reference tool throughout your career with the Town. Sign the acknowledgment at the end to show 
that you have read, understood, and agree to the contents of this Handbook, which sets out the basic 
rules and guidelines concerning your employment. 
 
This Handbook supersedes any previously issued handbooks, policy statements, memorandum, 
ordinances, resolutions, or other statements of the Town or any of its departments or divisions regarding 
the subject matter addressed herein. The Town reserves the right to interpret, modify, delete, or 
supplement the provisions of this Handbook at any time for any reason. The Town will endeavor to 
communicate changes to the Handbook promptly. It is your responsibility as a Town employee to be 
aware of, and remain upraised of, the Town’s policies and procedures, including those found in this 
Handbook and any supplement to it. 



  

 
To establish a uniform application of the policies in this Handbook, the Town Manager may publish 
memoranda, directives, or other written material that will serve as the official communication for 
implementing the regulations. 
 
This Handbook was not created to address every situation that may arise in the workplace. If you have 
questions about your employment, you are encouraged to ask them. If you need help reading or 
understanding any of the provisions of this handbook, feel free to contact Human Resources. 
 
We wish you success in your employment here with the Town of Springerville 



  

Contents 
1 

1. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF EMPLOYEE MANUAL .................................................................................. 1 

2. IMPLEMENTATION OF GUIDELINES IN EMPLOYEE MANUAL .......................................................................... 1 

3. APPLICABILITY ........................................................................................................................................................... 1 

4. CLASSIFICATION OF EMPLOYEES ........................................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 2 – EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY / UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT ............................................. 2 

1. GENERAL ...................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. ADA (American Disabilities Act) AND RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION ................................................................ 2 

4. COMPLAINT PROCEDURE ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

SECTION 3 – WORK SCHEDULES AND COMPENSATION ............................................................................................ 3 

1. TIME REPORTING ....................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. CALL-OUT PAY ............................................................................................................................................................ 4 

4. OVERTIME COMPENSATION .................................................................................................................................... 4 

5. COMPENSATORY TIME .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

6. WORKWEEK ................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

7. PAYDAYS ...................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

SECTION 4 – ALCOHOL AND DRUGS ................................................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 5 – CODE OF CONDUCT ...................................................................................................................................... 6 

1. GENERAL ...................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

2. SPECIFIC CONDUCT AND RESPONSIBILITIES ....................................................................................................... 6 

3. POLITICAL ACTIVITY ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ........................................................................................................................................... 7 

5. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION ............................................................................................................................... 7 

6. ANTI-VIOLENCE .......................................................................................................................................................... 8 

7. SEARCHES .................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 6 – OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT ............................................................................................................................. 8 

SECTION 7 – NEPOTISM ........................................................................................................................................................ 9 

SECTION 8 – TRAINING ......................................................................................................................................................... 9 

1. RESPONSIBILITY FOR TRAINING ............................................................................................................................ 9 

2. REIMBURSEMENT ....................................................................................................................................................... 9 

SECTION 9 – Employee HEALTH/ Examination ................................................................................................................. 10 

SECTION 10 – DRESS CODE, APPEARANCE, AND HYGIENE ..................................................................................... 10 

1. GENERAL .................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

2. EMPLOYEE APPEARANCE ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

3. UNIFORMS .................................................................................................................................................................. 11 

SECTION 11 – EMPLOYMENT TRIAL PERIOD .............................................................................................................. 11 

1. OVERVIEW ................................................................................................................................................................. 11 

2. PURPOSE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 12 



  

3. WRITTEN REPRIMAND ............................................................................................................................................ 12 

4. SUSPENSION .............................................................................................................................................................. 12 

5. DEMOTION ................................................................................................................................................................. 12 

6. DISMISSAL ................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

SECTION 13 – APPEAL PROCEDURE ............................................................................................................................... 13 

1. DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................................................................. 13 

3. APPEAL PROCEDURE ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

4. APPEAL HEARING ..................................................................................................................................................... 13 

SECTION 14 – CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENTS .................................................................................................................. 14 

SECTION 15 – POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN ....................................................................................................... 14 

SECTION 16 – COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS ........................................................................................................... 14 

1. COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY ............................................................................................................................... 14 

2. SALARY RANGES ...................................................................................................................................................... 14 

3. CLOTHING AND UNIFORMS ALLOWANCE .......................................................................................................... 14 

4. ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM/PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT ..................................................... 15 

SECTION 17 – PERFORMANCE RATING ......................................................................................................................... 15 

SECTION 18 – LEAVING THE TOWN SERVICE .............................................................................................................. 15 

1. HOLIDAY PAY ............................................................................................................................................................ 16 

1. VACATION LEAVE ..................................................................................................................................................... 16 

2. LEAVE PAYOFF AT DISMISSAL ................................................................................................................................ 17 

3. PAID SICK LEAVE ...................................................................................................................................................... 18 

4. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ............................................................................................................................................ 19 

5. MILITARY LEAVE ...................................................................................................................................................... 19 

6. CRIME VICTIM LEAVE ............................................................................................................................................. 20 

7. JURY AND WITNESS DUTY LEAVE ........................................................................................................................ 20 

8. VOTING ....................................................................................................................................................................... 20 

SECTION 20- FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE (FMLA) ..................................................................... 21 

2. MILITARY FAMILY LEAVE ENTITLEMENTS .......................................................................................................... 21 

3. BENEFITS AND PROTECTIONS ............................................................................................................................... 22 

4. ELIGIBILTY REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................................. 22 

5. DEFINITION OF SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION .................................................................................................. 22 

6. USE OF LEAVE ........................................................................................................................................................... 22 

7. SUBSTITUTION OF PAID LEAVE FOR UNPAID LEAVE ....................................................................................... 23 

8. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBLITIES ............................................................................................................................... 23 

9. TOWN RESPONSIBILITES ........................................................................................................................................ 23 

10. UNLAWFUL ACTS ..................................................................................................................................................... 24 

11. ENFORCEMENT ........................................................................................................................................................ 24 

SECTION 22 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ....................................................................................................................... 24 

SECTION 23 – ELECTRONIC DEVICE COMMUNICATION AND USAGE ................................................................ 24 



  

 

1. GENERAL .................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

2. INTENDED USE ......................................................................................................................................................... 25 

3. NO EXPECTION OF PRIVACY .................................................................................................................................. 25 

4. OWNERSHIP ............................................................................................................................................................... 25 

5. SECURITY OBLIGATIONS ....................................................................................................................................... 26 

6. CONTENT OF MESSAGES ........................................................................................................................................ 27 

7. ADDITIONAL USER OBLIGATIONS ....................................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 24 – CREDIT CARDS .............................................................................................................................................. 30 

SECTION 25 – VEHICLE USE POLICY .................................................................................................................................... 30 

       1.      GENERAL  .................................................................................................................................................................. 30 

2.  TOWN OWNED VEHICLES ...................................................................................................................................... 30 

SECTION 26 – WORKERS COMPENSATION .......................................................................................................................... 30 

1.   REPORTING OF INJURY ........................................................................................................................................... 31 

3. RETURN TO DUTY .................................................................................................................................................... 31 

4. INSURANCE PARTICIPATION ................................................................................................................................. 31 

SECTION 27 – CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE ........................................................................................................................ 31 

EMPLOYEE ACHKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT ..................................................................................................... 32 

 



1  

SECTION 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF EMPLOYEE MANUAL 
 

The Town Manager shall present to the Town Council any revisions to this manual. Amendments 
and revisions will be effective upon approval of the Town Council. 

 
2. IMPLEMENTATION OF GUIDELINES IN EMPLOYEE MANUAL 

 
A. Delegation of Authority: Unless otherwise stated in these guidelines, upon approval by 

the Town Manager, authority granted to the Department Head by these guidelines may 
be delegated. 

B. Availability of Funds: The granting of any compensation is contingent upon the 
availability of funds, as determined by the Department Head and Town Manager. 

C. Conflict with Federal or State Requirements: If any policy or guidelines described in this 
manual conflict with any applicable state or federal law, regulation or rule, the conflicting 
policy shall be disregarded only to the extent necessary to avoid a conflict. 

D. Correction of Errors: The Town Manager may correct a manifest error or clear an 
inequity affecting an employee or an applicant. 

E. Department Heads may create more restrictive regulations for their departments if so 
desired. The guidelines must be approved by the Town Manager. 

 
3. APPLICABILITY 

 
These guidelines are applicable to all positions in the Town unless a specific chapter or section 
is excluded from applicability for specified positions. 

 
4. CLASSIFICATION OF EMPLOYEES 

 
A. Exempt employee- Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime 
B. Full-time employees- for a calendar month, an employee employed on average at least 

thirty (30)fourtyforty (40)  hours of service per week, or one hundred and thirty (130) 
hours of service per month. Such employees may be either “exempt” or “nonexempt” as 
defined below. 

C. Nonexempt employee- Non-exempt employees are eligible for paid overtime at one and 
one-half times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours 
during the established workweek 

D. Part-time employee- for a calendar month, an employee employed on average no more 
than thirty (30) thirty nine (39)) hours of service per week, or one hundred and thirty 
(130) hours of service per month. 

E. Temporary- Employees that work for a designated and predetermined time period 
F. Title V- Part-time employee hired by Northern Arizona Council of Governments 

(NACOG) and placed with the Town. They are governed by NACOG and monitored by 
the Town. 

G. Volunteer- Individuals who perform services without any expectation of compensation. 
 

Employees will be informed by their supervisor of their status as an exempt or nonexempt 



2  

employee once hired and also if their status changes. 
 

SECTION 2 – EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY / UNLAWFUL HARASSMENT 
 

1. GENERAL 
 

The Town is dedicated to the principles of equal employment opportunity. We prohibit unlawful 
discrimination against applicants or employees on the basis of age of age forty (40) and over, 
race, sex (including pregnancy and breastfeeding), color, religion, national origin, disability, 
military status, genetic information (including the results of genetic testing), status as a registered 
medical marijuana cardholder, or any other applicable status protected by state or local law. 

 
This prohibition includes unlawful harassment based on any of these protected classes. Unlawful 
harassment includes verbal or physical conduct which has the purpose or effect of substantially 
interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
work environment. This policy applies to all employees, including managers, supervisors, co-
workers, and non-employees such as customers, clients, vendors, consultants, etc. 

 
2. ADA (American Disabilities Act) AND RELIGIOUS ACCOMMODATION 

 
The Town will make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with known disabilities 
and employees whose work requirements interfere with a religious belief unless doing so would 
result in an undue hardship to the Town or direct threat. The Town will make reasonable 
accommodation for employees whose work requirements interfere with a religious belief, unless 
doing so poses undue hardship on the Town. Employees needing such accommodation are 
instructed to contact their supervisor or the Town Manager. 

 
3. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 
Because sexual harassment raises issues that are to some extent unique in comparison to other 
harassment, the Town believes it warrants separate emphasis. The Town strongly opposes 
sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual conduct. Sexual harassment is defined as 
unwelcome sexual advances, requests of sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct 
of a sexual nature, when: 

A. Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of 
employment. 

B. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as basis for decisions affecting an 
individual’s employment. 

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual’s 
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

 
All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike manner 
at all times. Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited to, sexually implicit 
or explicit communications whether in: 

 
A. Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, e-mails. 
B. Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.25", Right: 
0.18"
Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.25"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Left
Formatted: Left, Indent: Hanging:  0.25"



3  

gossiping, or questions about another’s sex life, or repeated unwanted requests for 
dates. 

C. Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching, 
grabbing, fondling, kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another’s body. 

 
4. COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

 
If you believe there has been a violation of the EEO (Equal Employment Opportunity) policy or 
harassment based on the protected classes outlined above, including sexual harassment, 
please use the following complaint procedure. The Town expects employees to make a timely 
complaint to enable the Town to investigate and correct any behavior that may be in violation 
of this policy. 

 
Report the incident to the Town Manager or the Town Clerk who will investigate or have the 
incident investigated. Your complaint will be kept as confidential as practicable. If you prefer not 
to go to either of these individuals with your complaint, you should report the incident to the 
Mayor. 

 
The Town prohibits retaliation against an employee for filing a complaint under this policy or for 
assisting in a complaint investigation. If you perceive retaliation for making a complaint or your 
participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint procedure outlined above. The 
situation will be investigated. 

 
SECTION 3 – WORK SCHEDULES AND COMPENSATION 

 
1. TIME REPORTING 

 
To ensure that accurate records are kept of the hours that you actually work and of the accrued 
leave time you have taken, and to ensure that you are paid in a timely manner, you will be 
required to record your time worked and absences on the Town’s official time record form. 
Falsifying a time record violates the Town’s policies, and will not be tolerated. 

Non-exempt employees are required to complete a time card Bi-Weekly. This must be done on 
approved forms provided by the Finance Department at the conclusion of each pay period.  

Employees must sign the time card and submit it to their immediate supervisor for signature and 
approval. It is necessary for employees to indicate whether the recorded hours are for time 
worked, or for time off. No employee other than a Department Head may record hours for any 
other employee. 

 
Exempt employees are required to report [monthly] to their Department Head only the time off 
from their regular work schedule. They must also follow the procedures outlined in the time off 
policies to obtain approval in advance, when applicable. 

 
These records are the only ones used by the Town to calculate employee pay and paid time off 
balances. It is very important that they are accurate and complete. Nonexempt employees are 
expected to submit accurate and complete time records reflecting all hours worked. Employees 
who also choose to keep their own personal time records must provide them to the Town if they 
find a discrepancy between the Town’s records and their records. Employees should contact 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Right:  0.08", Space Before:  4 pt



4  

their supervisor and the Finance Department with any questions about how their pay is 
calculated. Employees must promptly notify their supervisor and the Finance Department of any 
mistakes in their time records or pay. Employees also must notify one of these individuals if they 
perceive that anyone is interfering with their ability to record their time accurately and completely. 
All reports will be investigated and appropriate corrective action will be taken. The Town will not 
tolerate retaliation against employees for making a report or participating in an investigation. 

 
2. CALL-OUT PAY 

 
The call-out procedure is established to provide for emergency situations where it is determined 
that additional assistance is required resulting in an employee being called into duty outside of 
his/her normal working hours. 

 
If an employee is called out to work under the circumstances previously mentioned, the 
employee will automatically receive credit for a minimum of one hour worked. Once the 
employee works more than one hour, the time credited will be actual time worked. Time is 
counted in 0.25-hour (or ¼ hour) increments after the first hour. 

 
3. ON-CALL/STAND-BY PAY 

 
Employees on stand-by shall be available to respond within a reasonable period of time. 
Employees assigned on-call duty will respond to emergency callback situations in accordance 
with time parameters established by the department. An employee on-call who fails to promptly 
respond to a call-out will not be paid for unworked on-call time and/or may be subject to 
disciplinary actions. 

 
The pay rate for on-call status shall be based upon the department an employee works for. 
Police Department: $3 for each on-call hour. Airport: one hour of pay for each day on-call. 
Public Works Departments: one hour of pay for each on-call day. If the employee is on-call for 
twenty-four (24) consecutive hours, within one day, they shall receive three hours of pay. 

Changes in on-call pay may be proposed by a department director and approved, in writing, by 
the Town Manager. 

 
On-call pay is a separate compensation class and, as such, is to be designated on a separate 
line of the employee’s timesheet as it is not combined with regular work hours for overtime 
calculation purposes. On-call pay time cannot be converted to regular time or compensatory 
time. 

 
4. OVERTIME COMPENSATION 

 
Overtime work may sometimes be necessary to meet emergency situations, staff shortage, 
seasonal, or peak workload requirements. Department Heads are responsible for the advance 
planning required to minimize the need for overtime. Non-exempt employees are paid at the rate 
of one and one-half (1 1/2) times their regular hourly rate for hours worked in excess of forty (40) 
during the established workweek. 

 
Overtime compensation will only be paid for hours actually worked in excess of forty (40) hours 

Formatted: Justified



5  

in a work week, excluding on-call/ stand-by pay. H o l i d a y  h o u r s  c o u n t  t o w a r d s  h o u r s  
w o r k e d  f o r  p u r p o s e s  o f  o v e r t i m e  c a l c u l a t i o n s .  Overtime shall be calculated to 
the nearest one quarter (1/4) hour of overtime worked. 

 
5. COMPENSATORY TIME 

 
Non-exempt employees may be eligible for compensatory time off. Use of compensatory time 
taken must be documented on time cards. Compensatory time is granted at the rate of one and 
one half (1 1/2) hours for each hour of overtime worked. Non-exempt employees may accrue a 
maximum of thirty (30) hours of compensatory time (twenty (20) hours of overtime worked). All 
comp time must be approved prior before the overtime hours are worked by the department 
head and Town Manager. 

 
Upon separation from the Town (or upon transfer into a position exempt from overtime), accrued 
compensatory time is paid at the employee’s regular rate of pay in effect immediately prior to 
separation or transfer. 

 
6. WORKWEEK 

 
The established workweek for calculating overtime for nonexempt employees will run from 
Sunday at 12:01 A.M. through Saturday at 12:00 A.M. 

 
7. PAYDAYS 

 
Employees are paid every other Thursday. If the regular payday occurs on a holiday, the payday 
is the last working day prior to the holiday. On each payday, employees receive a statement 
showing gross pay, deductions, and net pay. For the employees’ convenience, we offer the 
option of having their paycheck automatically deposited to their bank account. 

 
8. PAY FOR EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

Exempt employees must be paid on a salary basis. This means exempt employees will regularly 
receive a predetermined amount of compensation each pay period on a weekly basis. The Town 
is committed to complying with salary basis requirements which allows properly authorized 
deductions. If you believe an improper deduction has been made to your salary, you should 
immediately report this information to Finance. Reports of improper deductions will be promptly 
investigated. If it is determined that an improper deduction has occurred, you will be promptly 
reimbursed. 

 
SECTION 4 – ALCOHOL AND DRUGS 

 
The Town is committed to a safe, healthy, and productive work environment for all employees 
The Town prohibits the use, sale, dispensing, manufacture, distribution or possession of alcohol, 
drugs, controlled substances, medical marijuana, or drug paraphernalia on any Town premises 
or work sites. Additionally, the Town may take disciplinary action, including discharge, for the 
illegal (under federal or state law) off-duty use, sale, dispensing, manufacture, distribution or 
possession of drugs and controlled substances and the illegal use or distribution of alcohol. 

 

Formatted: Justified



6  

No employee shall report to work or be at work with alcohol or with any detectable number of 
prohibited drugs in the employee’s system. A detectable amount refers to the standards 
generally used in workplace drug and alcohol testing. 
 
If an employee’s job requires a commercial driver’s license, the employee’s employment will be 
subject to and contingent on compliance with applicable laws and regulations affecting 
commercial driver’s license holders, including applicable drug- and alcohol-testing requirements. 

 
An Arizona medical marijuana registered cardholder may not possess or ingest medical 
marijuana while at work or work while impaired by medical marijuana. 

 
When an employee must take prescription or over-the counter drugs, the employee must ask 
the medical professional or pharmacist if the drug has any side effects which may impair the 
employee’s ability to safely or productively perform the employee’s job duties. If there is 
potential impairment of the employee’s ability to work safely or productively, the employee must 
report this information to the supervisor. With input from the employee, the Town will determine 
if the employee should work in his regular job, be temporarily assigned to another job, or placed 
off work. 

 
Testing is an important element in the Town’s efforts to ensure a safe and productive work 
environment. See the Town’s testing policy for additional details. 

 
SECTION 5 – CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
1. GENERAL 

 
Town employees are expected to maintain high standards of professionalism so as to assure the 
proper and efficient conduct of Town business and to promote the confidence of the citizenry in 
the quality of their Town government. Employees are expected to be courteous,  
prompt and considerate in their dealings with the public and shall conduct themselves at all times 
in a manner which does not bring discredit or embarrassment to the Town. 

 
2. SPECIFIC CONDUCT AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
A. Employees shall not directly or indirectly use or allow the use of Town property of any 

kind including property leased, loaned or otherwise used by the Town, for other than 
officially approved activities. Officially approved activities are those authorized by the 
Town Council, Town Manager, Supervisor (Department Head), or an employee acting 
under the direction of the Town Council, Town Manager, Supervisor (Department Head). 
Employees are obligated to protect and conserve all Town property entrusted to them. 

B. Official positions shall not be used by Town employees for personal gain. Public 
influence and confidential or “inside” information must never be turned into personal 
advantage. 

C. Employees must never permit themselves to be placed under any kind of personal 
obligation which could lead any person to expect official favors. 

D. The employee’s acts must reflect impartiality. All official decisions must be determined 
by impersonal consideration, free from any taint. This provision does not prohibit the 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Space Before:  0 pt



7  

acceptance by an employee of food or refreshment of insignificant value or infrequent 
occasions where the employee is in attendance; nor the solicitation or acceptance by 
an employee of loans from banks or other financial institutions on customary terms to 
finance proper and usual activities of the employee; nor the acceptance of unsolicited 
advertising or promotional material such as pens, pencils, calendars and other items of 
nominal intrinsic value. Department guidelines will govern if more restrictive. 

 
3. POLITICAL ACTIVITY 

 
It shall be the policy of the Town for all employees , to remain free fromare prohibited from 
engaging in any political activity in any election, while on duty, while on Town premises, or while 
in an official uniform of the Town. Town employees shall not: 

 
A. Engage in any political activity while on duty (e.g. copies, mailings, posters, gathering 

of signatures, etc.). 
B. Coerce any Town employee while on duty to do anything in support of or against any 

party, committee, Town or person for a political purpose. 
C. Discriminate in favor of or against any Town employee or applicant because of such 

employees or applicant’s political contributions or activities. 
D. Town employees may run for Town elected positions or serve on Town boards and 

commissions that oversee Town operations only after resigning from their employment 
from the Town with the exception of the Tourism Tax Board, PSPRS Local Board, and 
Municipal Property Corporation Board. 

 
4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
It is the policy of the Town that employees at all levels be freeare prohibited from involvement in 
any interest, influence or relationship that might conflict, or appear to conflict, with the best 
interests of the Town. The existence of an actual or potential conflict of interest depends on 
specific facts. In any uncertain 

situation, the employee should immediately discuss the matter fully and frankly with the 
appropriate supervisor. Where there is any further doubt concerning a conflict, the specific facts 
should be noted in writing and sent to the Town Manager for resolution. The continuing 
requirement to disclose serves to inform the town Town and, at the same time, protect the 
employee from harmful effects of any subsequent activities, associations or interests which might 
constitute a prohibited conflict of interest. 

 
Employees must conform with all applicable conflict of interest laws. As such employees must 
disclose their interest, if any, in the official records of the employing department and shall not 
participate in or vote for any contract, sale, purchase or service in which they knowingly have an 
interest. 

 
5. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

 
Employees handling confidential information (for example, tax, payroll, personnel, proprietary, 
disciplinary, 
…) are responsible for its security. Extreme care must be exercised to ensure that it is 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Right:  0", Space Before:  0.05 pt



8  

safeguarded to protect the Town. Our Town’s business affairs should not be discussed with 
anyone outside the Town, except when required in the normal course of business. 

 
No Dissemination. Use of the System to disseminate the Town's confidential information outside 
the Town is expressly prohibited. Special care should be taken when forwarding e-mail 
messages, especially instant messages. Confidential or proprietary Town information must not 
be forwarded to any party outside the Town without the prior approval of the Town Manager. 
Blanket forwarding of messages to parties outside the Town is prohibited. 

 
No Interception. Users shall not intercept or disclose, or assist in intercepting or disclosing, 
electronic communications unless specifically authorized by the Town. 

 
6. ANTI-VIOLENCE 

 
Employees must not engage in intimidation, threats, or hostile behaviors, physical/verbal abuse, 
vandalism, arson, sabotage, or any other act which in management’s opinion is inappropriate 
to the workplace. 

 
In addition, employees must refrain from making offensive comments regarding violent events 
and/or behavior. Employees are expected to report any prohibited conduct to management. 
Employees should directly contact proper law enforcement authorities if they believe there is a 
serious threat to the safety and health of themselves or others. 

 
The Town prohibits employees possessing or using weapons on Town property regardless of 
whether or not the person is licensed to carry the weapon. Employees who are legally permitted 
to possess a firearm, may store their firearm in a vehicle in the Town’s parking lot. The firearm 
must not be in plain view, and the unoccupied vehicle must be locked. The only exception is 
certified law enforcement. 

The use of weapons on Town property is prohibited. The only exception is by certified law 
enforcement or as part of a demonstration that is pre-approved by the Town Manager. 

 
Visitors are only permitted to possess weapons on Town property if the weapon does not pose 
a threat to Town employees and visitors. 

 
7. SEARCHES 

 
The Town may conduct searches of an employee’s personal effects with permission of the 
employee or if there is a reasonable suspicion to believe that illegal activity is taking place and 
after obtaining a warrant to do so. Any illegal and unauthorized articles discovered may be taken 
into custody and will be turned over to law enforcement representatives. Employees do not have 
a reasonable expectation of privacy in lockers, desks, cabinets, or file drawers, all of which are 
keyed by the Town and copies of those keys are kept by the Town. 

 
SECTION 6 – OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

 
Outside employment by Town employees is not prohibited, but is regulated by a few important 
rules. A Town employee must not engage in outside employment during regularly scheduled 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



9  

working hours (defined by each department), while at the Town’s facilities or when using the 
Town’s supplies, equipment, materials or personnel. Outside employment must not cause a 
conflict of interest or cause deterioration in satisfactory performance of duties while in the Town’s 
employ. 

 
Employees shall not engage in outside or other employment or activity which tends to impair 
their ability to perform the duties and responsibilities assigned them in an acceptable manner. 
Nor shall employees perform any work in a private capacity which may be construed by the 
public to be a conflict. 

 
Town employees must obtain written approval from their Department Head and the Town 
Manager to engage in outside employment. A copy of the approval will be provided to the 
employee, Department Head, Town Manager, and placed in the employee’s personnel file. 

 
Employees who have accepted outside employment are not eligible to receive compensation 
during an absence from work which is the result of an injury on the second job, except through 
properly authorized leave. 

 
SECTION 7 – NEPOTISM 

For the purpose of this section, relative is defined to include: 

Mother (in law) Husband 
Father (in law) Wife 
Aunt Uncle 
Niece Nephew 
Sister (in law or step) Step Children 
Brother (in law or step)  Step Parents  
Daughter (in law or step) Grandchildren  
Son (in law or step)  Grandparents 

 
Appointment of relatives of Town employees to positions in the Town service shall be permitted, 
provided that the relative shall not be employed in positions where one would be supervising the 
other, or a conflict of interest might arise concerning a question of internal control. A Town 
employee may not be promoted or transferred into a position involving supervision by or of a 
relative. 

 
Should a marriage between employees result in one having operational or supervisory control 
over the other, transfers must be made to eliminate that situation. If a transfer cannot be 
accomplished, one party must resign from the Town service. 

 
No provision of this rule shall exclude relatives of Town appointed boards, commissions or 
committees, as herein defined, from entering the Town service. 

 
SECTION 8 – TRAINING 

 
1. RESPONSIBILITY FOR TRAINING 



10  

 
The responsibility for developing training programs for employees shall be assumed jointly by 
the Town Manager and Department Heads. Completion of training programs may be considered 
in making advancements and promotions. 

 
2. REIMBURSEMENT 

 
The Town Manager may grant reimbursement for college classes, seminars if the training is in 
the best interest of the Town and prior arrangements with the employee’s Department Head and 
approval of Town Manager have been made in writing. A copy of the agreement will be placed 
in the employee’s personnel file and copies distributed to the employee, the Town Manager, the 
employee’s Department Head, and the Finance Director. The course or classes should be taken 
on the employee’s own time. Reimbursement may be granted for books and/or tuition. 

 
The Town Manager may correlate the reimbursement to the grade (letter or number) the 
employee receives in the class. 

 
SECTION 9 – EMPLOYEE HEALTH/ EXAMINATION 

 
As a condition of continued employment, employees may be required to undergo periodic 
medical examinations that are job related and consistent with business necessity at times 
specified by the Town. In connection with these examinations, employees are required to 
cooperate. Further, it is important to understand that the Town pays for and receives medical 
reports from its’ physicians regarding the applicant’s or employee’s health. All information will 
be treated confidentially and in concert with the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act and 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 
 

SECTION 10 – DRESS CODE, APPEARANCE, AND HYGIENE 
 

1. GENERAL 
 

The Town expects personnel to maintain a professional appearance. It shall be the responsibility 
of all employees to represent the Town in a manner, which shall be professional, courteous, 
helpful and efficient. 

 
Dress, grooming and personal cleanliness standards contribute to the morale of all employees 
and affect the image the Town presents to the general public. During business hours or while on 
duty, employees are expected to present a clean and neat appearance and to dress according 
to the requirements of their positions. Department Heads/Supervisors are responsible for 
determining and enforcing the dress code for their employees. 

 
2. EMPLOYEE APPEARANCE 

 
Town employees should always be well groomed and dressed in a manner suitable for the public 
service environment. Employees should present themselves in a manner which favorably 
reflects the Town’s image in the public’s view. 

 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



11  

A. Acceptable Attire/Professional Appearance 
Regulations pertaining to acceptable employee attire and grooming are flexible and can 
be determined by their respective department or work environment. There are expected 
norms of professional appearance, personal neatness, cleanliness and good grooming 
that are applicable to all employees. Common sense should prevail in maintaining a 
professional appearance and decorum. 

B. Personal Appearance 
Personal appearance includes, but is not limited to: 
1. Clean clothes in good repair. 
2. No offensive slogans or advertisements. 
3. No portion of torso exposed. 
4. No braless appearance (halter, spaghetti straps, exposed cleavage). 
5. Good grooming and hygiene. 
6. Limited piercing of ears is acceptable however other visible body piercings are 

prohibited due to safety concerns related to the jewelry and work environment. 
C. Unacceptable Attire/Appearance 

Extravagance and extremes of style and attire are not in good taste in the public service 
environment. The Town reserves the right to advise any employee at any time that his 
or her grooming, attire or appearance is unacceptable. 

D. Discipline for Unacceptable Appearance 
After being advised of unacceptable attire issues an employee will be expected to 
comply with the suggested change. Failure to do so will result in corrective action. 

 
3. UNIFORMS 

Employees who are required to wear a uniform of any type in the performance of their duties will 
be provided a uniform allowance by the Town. 

 
A. Uniforms that are provided by the Town become the property of the employee during 

the employment service to the Town. 
B. Laundering, cleaning and general upkeep of uniforms is the responsibility of each 

employee. 
C. Employees should be aware that the furnishing of uniforms and maintenance or 

replacement allowance, if any, may, under certain circumstances, is be considered 
a taxable benefit. 

D. Employees receiving a uniform allowance will be required to wear a uniform while at 
work. 

 
SECTION 11 – EMPLOYMENT TRIAL PERIOD 

 
New employees are on a trail trial period for up to six (6) months. During and after this period 
the supervisor closely observes the employee’s job performance. Upon completion of the first six 
months of employment, employees become eligible for certain benefits. 

 
New employees begin accruing vacation from their first day of work but are not eligible to use or 
receive a payout of vacation until after the trail trial period is completed. 
 
Police officers will remain in a twelve (12) month trial period from their date of graduation from 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.25"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.25"
Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Hanging:  0.25"

Formatted: Justified



12  

the police academy or first day of employment. Police officers will begin accruing vacation from 
their first day of work but are not eligible to use or receive a payout of vacation until after six 
months of employment. 
 

 
SECTION 12 – DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

 
1. OVERVIEW 

 
The Town will expects its employees to maintain a high level of personal and professional 
conduct at all times, and will take appropriate action when this standard is not met. No workplace 
conduct statement can possibly cover every circumstance that may arise. Use good common 
sense. If there is any question, it is your responsibility to get clarification from the Department 
Head. The disciplinary process usually proceeds as follows: a written reprimand, suspension, 
demotion, and then dismissal. The entire process will be documented and retained in an 
employee’s file. 

 
2. PURPOSE 

 
The proper performance of an employee’s work and conduct befitting the employee’s position 
play an important part in the continuance of employment with the Town. Disciplinary actions 
shall be a constructive means of dealing with an employee’s unacceptable conduct or 
performance and should be appropriate to the seriousness of the infraction or performance 
deficiency: Disciplinary actions can range from a formal discussion with the employee about the 
matter to immediate discharge. Action taken by management in an individual case does not 
establish a precedent in other circumstances. 
 

3. WRITTEN REPRIMAND 
 

A reprimand may be issued by the immediate supervisor for an offense when, in the Town’s 
discretion, other forms of discipline are not warranted. A reprimand shall be in writing and a copy 
shall be forwarded to the Town Manager for insertion in the employee’s personnel file. 

 
4. SUSPENSION 

 
A Department Head with the approval of the Town Manager may suspend a non-exempt 
employee without pay at any time for disciplinary reasons, not to exceed three (3) working days. 
The Town Manager may suspend an employee without pay not to exceed thirty (30) calendar 
days: No employee shall be penalized by suspension without pay for more than thirty (30) 
calendar days in any calendar year. Any employee who is suspended for more than three (3) 
working days may request a pre-suspension hearing with the Town Manager. This request must 
be made in writing. The Town Manager may suspend an employee with pay pending completion 
and disposition of an investigation. 

 
The Town will not pay any portion of any employee’s insurance premium during the period of a 
thirty (30) day suspension. A suspended employee who wishes to continue any insurance 
coverage must pay the premium directly to the Finance Department within two (2) working days 

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Justified



13  

of the beginning of the suspension. 
 

5. DEMOTION 
 

A Department Head, after approval by the Town Manager, may demote an employee whose 
ability to perform required duties falls below the minimum job requirements or for disciplinary 
reasons as provided in this article. No employee shall be demoted to a position for which he/she 
does not possess the minimum qualifications. 

 
Written notice of the intended action shall be given to the employee before the effective date of 
the demotion, and a copy shall be filed with the Town Manager. Any employee who is demoted 
may request a pre-demotion hearing with the Town Manager. This request must be made in 
writing. 

 
Final authority for demotion rests with the Town Manager. 

 
6. DISMISSAL 

 
A. Authority: The Department, Head, with the approval of the Town Manager, may dismiss 

an employee from the Town service for a variety of reasons. 
B. Pre-dismissal Hearing: Once the recommendation has been made to dismiss a Town 

employee, the Department Head must schedule a pre-dismissal hearing. The employee 
will be notified not less than two (2) working days in advance of the hearing. The 
employee will be allowed to bring a personal representative and any pertinent 
information to the hearing. If the employee’s representative is a Town employee, the 

representative must secure the approval of the employee’s supervisor to attend the 
hearing. The Town Manager will carefully weigh the information provided. 

C. Notification: The Town Manager shall sign a written order, which shall constitute the 
Notice of Dismissal. This notice shall clearly state the specific charges made against 
the employee and copy of the charges shall be provided to the employee. 

 
SECTION 13 – APPEAL PROCEDURE 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 

 
An appeal is a complaint filed by an employee, in connection with a suspension of more than 
three (3) days, demotion or dismissal. 

 
2. APPEAL OFFICER 

 
The Town Council will appoint an Appeal Officer for a term of up to five (5) years. 

 
3. APPEAL PROCEDURE 

 
An employee who has completed the trial period may appeal any suspension, demotion or 
dismissal in writing to the Town Manager within ten (10) working days of written notice of the 
suspension, demotion, or dismissal. The Town Manager shall transmit a copy of the appeal to 



14  

an Appeal Officer within ten (10) working days from the receipt of the appeal. 
 

4. APPEAL HEARING 
 

The hearing will be set by the Appeal Officer within ten (10) working days of receipt of the appeal. 
The Officer will cause notice to be given to the appealing party and the Town Manager of the 
time, place, and location of the hearing. The appealing party shall have the right to representation 
by legal counsel. 

 
The Appeal Officer shall have the power to examine witnesses under oath and compel their 
attendance or production of evidence by subpoena issued in the name of the Town and the Chief 
of Police shall cause service of the same. Formal rules of procedure need not be followed during 
the course of the hearing. 

 
A record of the proceedings shall be made available to all parties within ten (10) working days 
following the completion of the hearing. The Appeal Officer shall furnish the appealing party and 
the Town Manager with their written decision. If a written transcript is requested, the Appeal 
Officer will have ten (10) working days to provide the transcript. 

 
SECTION 14 – CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENTS 

 
The Town supports the growth of its employees and promoting from within its ranks. All positions 
will be advertised internally first for an appropriate period of time. If a candidate is not hired fromthe 
internal applicants, then the Town will advertise the position for external applicants.  Internal 
candidates will get preference to available positions. Exceptions to this process require prior 
approval by the Town Council. 

 
SECTION 15 – POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN 

 
The Town Manager or a person or agency employed for that purpose, shall ascertain and record 
the duties and responsibilities of all positions in the classified service and, after consultation with 
the Department Heads affected, shall recommend a classification plan for such positions. The 
classification plan shall consist of classes of positions in the classified service defined by class 
specifications, including job titles. The classification plan shall be so developed and maintained 
that all positions substantially similar with respect to duties, responsibilities, authority and 
character of work are included within the same class, and the same schedules of compensation 
may be made to apply with equity under like working conditions to all positions in the same class. 
The plan shall be amended as the duties, responsibilities, and employment conditions change. 

 
SECTION 16 – COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

 
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY 

 
1. GENERAL 

 
The Town established a pay policy and compensation methodology. Additional details can be 
found in the current report. 



15  

 
2. SALARY RANGES 

 
Each position is assigned a salary range. An employee is paid a wage within the salary range 
unless their wage was above the range before the range was determined. 

 
3. CLOTHING AND UNIFORMS ALLOWANCE 

 
Clothing allowances and uniform privileges shall be set by the Town Council in its annual budget 
and administered by the Town Manager. 

 
4. ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM/PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 

 
All qualified employees of the Town are required to participate in the Arizona State Retirement 
System/Public Safety Retirement. 

 
5. PREMIUM COVERAGE 

 
The Town offers every full-time employee working thirty (30) fourtyforty (40) regularly 
scheduled hours per week coverage under a group health, dental, vision, and life insurance 
policy. Any employee hired prior to July 1, 2018 that was taking this benefit, who voluntarily 
elects not to participate in the medical health care plan offered by the Town will be paid fifty 
(50) percent of the cost of the premium paid by the Town at a single employee rate, current 
with existing medical 

insurance benefit, after the mandatory deduction of the employee contribution. Anyone taking 
the benefit after July 1, 2018 will be entitled to a benefit according to the current policy amount. 
This amount will be included as part of the employees pay check and is subject to all 
applicable taxes. A form to make this request is available from the Town Clerk. 

6. Cell Phone Stipend: 

Employees who are eligible for a phone stipend will receive the stipend biweekly 
included in their paycheck.  Employees receiving a stipend are solely responsible for 
acquiring and maintaining their own cell phone and cell service.  Monthly stipends will 
be in the amount of $40. In the alternative, employees may be issued a Town Cell 
Phone.  

 

Eligibility 

The following employment positions are eligible to receive a monthly stipend for the 
business use of a personal cell phone or a Town issued cell phone 

• Department directors;  

•  Public safety employees as authorized by the Chief of the Department; 

• All other employees as deemed necessary by the Town Manager.   
 

SECTION 17 – PERFORMANCE RATING 
 

To ensure that employees perform their jobs to the best of their abilities, it is important that the 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6"



16  

Town recognize their good performance and provide appropriate suggestions for improvement 
when necessary. Consistent with this goal, employees will be evaluated, usually by their 
immediate supervisors, on a periodic basis, typically two (2) weeks before the end of any trial 
period and annually thereafter. Please contact and advise your supervisor or Human 
Resources if more than a year has passed since receiving formal feedback. 

 
If an employee does not receive a periodic performance review, it is that employee’s 
responsibility to inform the supervisor or Department Head in writing. This will help the Town 
ensure that the appraisal process is administered in a timely manner. Employees are requested 
to sign the evaluation to indicate acknowledgement, and may submit written comments in 
response to the evaluation. The evaluation, and any comments, will be maintained in the 
employee’s personnel file. An employee may discuss any aspect of his or her evaluation with 
the Town Manager. 

 
SECTION 18 – LEAVING THE TOWN SERVICE 

 
An employee wishing to leave the Town service in good standing should give notice as soon as 
practical. A written resignation stating the effective date and the reasons for leaving should be 
filed with the Town Clerk as soon as practical. The resignation shall be forwarded to the Town 
Clerk for processing. Upon receipt of the signed resignation, the Town Clerk shall prepare the 
appropriate release documents. Failure of the employee to comply with the provisions of this 
article shall be entered into the employee’s personnel file and may be cause for denial of future 
employment with the Town. Employees leaving the Town service shall turn in all Town property 
and clear all debts to the Town. 

 
SECTION 19 – TYPES OF LEAVE 

 
1. HOLIDAY PAY 

The Town currently observes the following holidays: 

New Year’s Day 
Martin Luther King Day 
President’s Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran’s Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Friday following Thanksgiving Day (only if working an 8-hour shift) 
Christmas Eve 
Christmas Day 

 
Full-time employees receive holiday pay at their normal rate of pay for their regular shift in lieu 
of hours worked. 

 
Part-time employees, who accrue leave, shall receive holiday pay based upon a proration of 



17  

their budgeted working hours. 
 

Employees whose regularly scheduled day-off falls on an observed Town holiday will receive a 
different day off during the calendar week. 

 
If an eligible employee is required to work on an observed holiday, the employee will receive the 
employee’s normal rate of pay for their usual shift, plus holiday pay for the holiday. Overtime 
pay will apply for any hours actually worked over forty (40) work hours in that work week. 

 
When any of the above holidays fall on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed as a 
holiday. When any of the above holidays fall on a Saturday or Friday, the prior Thursday shall 
be observed as a holiday. 

 
The Town Manager may implement decisions to maintain essential services during the holiday. 

 
Paid time off for other religious holidays may be granted by the Town Manager in lieu of the 
observed holidays. 

 
This policy does not pertain to Patrol Officers (Officer, Sergeant, etc.). Instead, these employees 
will be provided 3.85 hours per pay period in holiday pay. 

 
1. VACATION LEAVE 

 
Vacation leave is provided to full-time and part-time employees of the Town to enable each 
eligible employee to return to work mentally refreshed. All full-time employees in the Town 
service shall receive annual vacation leave as follows: 
 

 
Non-Exempt Employees 

 
Years of Service Accrued Per Year Accrued Per Pay Period 
0 - 5 10 days 3.846 
6 - 10 12 days 4.615 
11 - 15 15 days 5.769 
15+ 20 days 7.692 

 
Exempt Employees 

 
 

Years of Service Accrued Per Year Accrued Per Pay Period 
0 - 5 15 days 5.769 
6 - 10 17 days 6.538 
10+ 20 days 7.692 

 

Part-time employees accrue vacation at a prorated amount based upon their work schedule and 
years of service. 

 
Upon completion of the employment trial period, vacation leave may be taken subject to the 



18  

accrual schedule as established in this policy. 
 

The times during a calendar year at which an employee may take vacation time shall be 
determined by the Department Head with due regard for the wishes for the employee and 
particular regard for the needs of the employee’s service. Except under unusual circumstances, 
requests for vacation leave shall be made by the employee to the supervisor far enough in 
advance to allow the supervisor to plan for the absence and must not unduly disrupt the 
operations of the department. 

 
Earned vacation hours may be voluntarily transferred from one employee to another in order to 
alleviate a hardship for an employee who has used all his/her leave due to a personal or family 
emergency. The amount of time that may be transferred will not exceed forty (40) hours of 
vacation. 

 
Under no circumstance may an employee accrue more vacation leave than can be 
accumulated within a two-and-a-half-year period or thirty (30) months. The total may not 
exceed four hundred and eighty (480) hours. 

 
2. LEAVE PAYOFF PAYOUT AT DISMISSAL AFTER TRIAL PERIOD 

 
Employees who have completed the employment trial period and who are dismissed, shall be 
paid in a lump sum for all vacation leave and compensatory time accrued prior to the effective 
date of dismissal. Should any liabilities be outstanding to the Town, they must be taken care of 
first. Employees who are dismissed before the completion of the employment trial period shall 
not be entitled to receive vacation leave pay. 

 
The times during a calendar year at which an employee may take vacation time shall be 
determined by the Department Head with due regard for the wishes for the employee and 
particular regard for the needs of the employee’s service. Except under unusual circumstances, 
requests for vacation leave shall be made by the employee to the supervisor far enough in 
advance to allow the supervisor to plan for the absence and must not unduly disrupt the 
operations of the department. 

 
3. PAID SICK LEAVE 

 
Sick leave with pay will be granted to all full and part-time employees in the Town service. In the 
event that an employee becomes sick or has an accident during paid time off for vacation, with 
proper medical documentation, the time may be charged to accrued sick time. 

 
Sick leave shall be accrued at the rate of 3.08 hours per pay period (ten (10) days per year) for 
all full-time employees working a scheduled forty (40) hours per week. All employees may accrue 
up to four hundred (400) hours of sick leave, after which time additional sick leave is not accrued 
until the accrued balance falls below the maximum. 
 

Employees must use paid sick leave in half hour increments. 

Paid sick leave will not be used in the calculation of overtime. 



19  

Accrued unused sick leave is not paid to an employee upon separation. 
 

Any employee who has exhausted available sick leave may substitute with accumulated 
vacation leave. 

 
A. Employees may use sick leave for any of the following reasons: 

 An employee’s mental or physical illness, injury or health condition; an employee’s 
need for medical diagnosis, care or treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury 
or health condition; an employee’s need for preventive medical care. 

 Care of a family member with a mental or physical illness, injury or health condition; 
care of a family member who needs medical diagnosis, care, or treatment of a 
mental or physical illness, injury or health condition; care of a family member who 
needs preventive care. 

 Closure of the employee’s place of business by order of a public health official or 
need to care for a child whose school or place of care has been closed by order of 
a public health official. 

 Care for oneself or family member when it has been determined by health authorities 
or a health care provider that the employee’s or family member’s presence in the 
community may jeopardize the health of others because of their exposure to a 
communicable disease. 

 Absence due to domestic violence, sexual violence, abuse or stalking, provided the 
leave is to allow the employee to obtain for the employee or the employee’s family 
member: 
 Medical attention needed to recover from injury or disability caused by domestic 

violence, sexual violence, abuse or stalking 
 Services from a domestic or sexual violence program or victim services 

organization 
 Psychological or other counseling 
 Relocation or taking steps to secure an existing home due to the domestic 

violence, sexual violence, abuse or stalking; or 
 Legal services related to the domestic violence, sexual violence, abuse or 

stalking. 
B. Family member means the following for purposes of this policy: 

 Biological, adopted or foster child, stepchild or legal ward, a child of domestic 
partner, a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, or an individual to 
whom the employee stood in loco parentis when the individual was a minor, 

 Biological, foster, stepparent or adoptive parent or legal guardian of an employee or 
an employee’s spouse or domestic partner or a person who stood in loco parentis 
when the employee or employee’s spouse or domestic partner was a minor child, 

 Spouse or a registered domestic partner 
 Grandparent, grandchild or sibling (whether biological, foster, adoptive or step) of 

the employee or the employee’s spouse or domestic partner, or 

 Any other individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the 
employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. 

 
When unable to report to work due to illness or for one of the reasons listed above, employees 
must give their supervisor reasonable advance notice of the need to use paid sick leave and 



20  

shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the use of the paid sick leave in a manner that does 
not unduly disrupt the Town’s operations. If reasonable advance notice is not possible, contact 
your supervisor as soon as practically possible and prior to the beginning of your shift, if possible. 
Notification should include the expected duration of your absence, if known. 

 
Paid sick leave under this policy may run concurrently with leave taken under other applicable 
policies, including leave taken under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). 

 
Employees who are denied needed paid sick leave for one of the purposes listed in this section 
should contact Human Resources or the Town Clerk for an individualized review. 

 
Earned sick leave may be voluntarily transferred from one employee to another in order to 
alleviate a hardship for an employee who has used all his/her leave due to a personal or family 
emergency. Employees who wish to transfer their sick leave need to submit a request to the 
Finance Department to complete the transfer. 

 
4. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

 
A full-time employee may be granted paid bereavement leave due to a death in the immediate 
family. 

 
For the purpose of this section the term immediate family means the employee’s spouse, child, 
stepchild, mother, father, step-mother, step-father, sister, step-sister, step-brother, mother-in-law, 
father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, step-parent-in-law, grandparent, and grandchild. 

 
The amount of bereavement leave is limited to three (3) work days. If the employee wishes to 
take leave beyond the bereavement amount, the additional hours will be charged to sick leave. 

 
5. MILITARY LEAVE 

 
If you are a member of the U.S. Armed Forces Reserve, National Guard or performing other 
protected uniformed service, you are granted an unpaid leave of absence when called for 
active or inactive duty training. This time is granted in addition to earned vacation time. 
However, if you desire to use your vacation time for this purpose, you may voluntarily do so if 
you make a request in writing. 

 
If you are called to serve in a branch of the U.S. Armed Forces for an extended period, upon 
returning to the Town after separation from military service, you may be reinstated in accordance 
with the laws governing veterans’ re-employment rights. All employees entitled to military leave 
shall give their supervisors an opportunity, within the limits of military regulations, to determine 
when such leave shall be taken. 

 
6. CRIME VICTIM LEAVE 

 
Certain employees are allowed time off to be present at a court-related proceeding, or to obtain 
an order of protection, associated with being a victim of a crime or juvenile offense pursuant to 
state law, unless the time off creates an undue hardship on the Town. Employees are not eligible 



21  

for the leave if they are accused of the crime or are in custody for the crime. 
 

To qualify for crime victim, leave, you must submit to Human Resources a copy of the form 
provided to you by the law enforcement agency involved in the proceedings or, if applicable, 
notice of each scheduled proceeding, each time you request leave. You will be required to use 
any paid time off that is available to you in conjunction with the leave. If paid time off is not 
available, the leave time will be unpaid. Exempt staff members will be paid their normal salary 
during any workweek in which they use crime victim leave and also perform services for the 
Town, regardless of the amount of time spent performing those services. 

 
7. JURY AND WITNESS DUTY LEAVE 

 
Every full-time employee of the Town who is required to serve as a juror shall be entitled to 
absent themselves from their duties with the Town during the period of such service or while 
necessarily being present in court as a result of such call. Under such circumstances, the 
employee shall be paid full salary and any payment received from the court shall be remitted to 
the Town, except travel pay, for such duty. Employees subpoenaed to testify as witnesses in 
criminal or civil cases shall be entitled to absent themselves in the same manner as for jury 
leave. 

 
Employees are expected to return to work if they are excused from jury duty during regular 
working hours. 

 
The Town may require that employees submit a copy of the summons to serve on the jury and/or 
proof of service upon completion of jury duty. 

 
8. VOTING 

 
Voting is an important responsibility we all assume as citizens. We encourage employees to 
exercise their voting rights in all municipal, state, and federal elections. 

 
If the employee does not have three consecutive hours outside of working hours when the polls 
are open. The employer must pay the employee for time off to vote only for the time off that when 
added to the time difference between the work hours and opening or closing of the polls will 
provide the employee three consecutive hours to vote. 

 
Example, the voting polls are open from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. The employee’s work hours are 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. The employer must provide an hour of paid time off to vote at the beginningor 
ending of the employee’s shift because the employee only has two consecutive hours at the 
beginning or ending of his shift to vote. 

 
9. QUESTIONS 

 
All questions regarding leaves of absence should be directed to the immediate supervisor. 

 
SECTION 20- FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE (FMLA) 

 



22  

1. GENERAL 
 

The Town provides up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible 
employees for the following reasons: 

 
A. Incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, or child birth; 
B. To care for the employee’s child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care; 
C. To care for the employee’s spouse, son or daughter, or parent, who has a serious 

health condition; 
D. Serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the 

employee’s job. 
 

2. MILITARY FAMILY LEAVE ENTITLEMENTS 
 

Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or called to active 
duty status in the Armed Forces, National Guard, or Reserves may use their twelve (12) week 
leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include 
attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain 
financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending post- 
deployment reintegration briefings. 

 
FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees to take up to 26 
weeks of leave to care for a covered servicemember during a single 12-month period. A 
covered servicemember is: (1) a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of 
the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or 
therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, 
for a serious injury or illness*; or (2) a veteran who was discharged or released under 
conditions other than dishonorable at any time during the five-year period prior to the first date 
the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran, and who is 
undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious injury or illness.* 

 
*The FMLA definitions of “serious injury or illness” for current servicemembers and veterans 
are distinct from the FMLA definition of “serious health condition.” 

 
3. BENEFITS AND PROTECTIONS 

During FMLA leave, the Town maintains the employee’s health coverage under any group 
health plan on the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. Employees must 
continue to pay their portion of any insurance premium while on leave. If the employee is able 
but does not return to work after the expiration of the leave, the employee will be required to 
reimburse the Town for payment of insurance premiums during leave. 

 
Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees are restored to their original or equivalent 
positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms. Certain highly 
compensated employees (key employees) may have limited reinstatement rights. 

 
Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to 
the start of an employee’s leave. As with other types of unpaid leaves, vacation and sick leave 



23  

will not accrue during the unpaid leave. Holidays, bereavement leave, or employer’s jury duty 
pay are not granted on unpaid leave. 

 
4. ELIGIBILTY REQUIREMENTS 

 
Employees are eligible if they have worked for the Town for at least twelve (12) months, for 
1,250 hours over the previous twelve (12) months, and if they work at a work site with at least 
fifty (50) employees within seventy-five (75) miles. 

 
5. DEFINITION OF SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION 

 
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that 
involves either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health 
care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the functions of 
the employee’s job, or prevents a qualified family member from participating in school or other 
daily activities. 

 
Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of 
incapacity of more than three consecutive full calendar days combined with at least two visits 
to a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due 
to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the 
definition of continuing treatment. 

 
6. USE OF LEAVE 

 
The maximum time allowed for FMLA leave is either twelve (12) weeks in a twelve (12) month 
period as defined by the Town, or twenty-six (26) weeks as explained above. The Town uses 
the twelve (12) month period measured forward from the first day of an employee’s leave. 

 
An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken 
intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must 
make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly 
disrupt the Town’s operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an 
intermittent basis. 

Employees taking intermittent or reduced schedule leave based on planned medical treatment 
and those taking intermittent or reduced schedule family leave with the Town agreement may 
be required to temporarily transfer to another job with equivalent pay and benefits that better 
accommodates that type of leave. 

 
7. SUBSTITUTION OF PAID LEAVE FOR UNPAID LEAVE 

 
The Town requires employees to use accrued vacation and sick leave while taking FMLA 
leave. In order to use these leaves during FMLA leave, employees must comply with the 
Town’s normal paid leave policies. If an employee fails to follow the Town’s policies, the 
employee cannot use accrued paid leave, but can take unpaid leave. FMLA leave is without 
pay when paid leave benefits are exhausted 

 



24  

8. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBLITIES 
 

Employees must provide thirty (30) days advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when 
the need is foreseeable. When thirty (30) days’ notice is not possible, the employee must 
provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with the Town’s normal call-in 
procedures. 

 
Employees must provide sufficient information for the Town to determine if the leave may 
qualify for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient 
information may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions; the family 
member is unable to perform daily activities; the need for hospitalization or continuing 
treatment by a health care provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family 
leave. Employees also must inform the Town if the requested leave is for a reason for which 
FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. 

 
Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification 
supporting the need for leave. The Town may require second and third medical opinions at the 
Town’s expense. Documentation confirming family relationship, adoption, or foster care may be 
required. If notification and appropriate certification are not provided in a timely manner, 
approval for leave may be denied. Continued absence after denial of leave may result in 
disciplinary action in accordance with the Town’s attendance guideline. Employees on leave 
must contact the Human Resource Manager at least two days before their first day of return. 

 
9. TOWN RESPONSIBILITES 

 
The Town will inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA. If they 
are, the notice will specify any additional information required as well as the employees’ rights 
and responsibilities. If they are not eligible, the Town will provide a reason for the ineligibility. 

 
The Town will inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and the 
amount of leave counted against the employee’s leave entitlement. If the Town determines 
that the leave is not FMLA-protected, the Town will notify the employee. 

10. UNLAWFUL ACTS 
 

FMLA makes it unlawful for the Town to: 
A. Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under FMLA; 
B. Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful 

by FMLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA. 
 

11. ENFORCEMENT 
 

An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private 
lawsuit against the Town. 

 
FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any 
state or local law or collective bargaining agreement which provides greater family or medical 
leave rights. 



25  

 
SECTION 21- TOBACCO 

 
In keeping with the Town's intent to provide a safe and healthful work environment, smoking is 
prohibited throughout the workplace. Smoking is only permitted in designated areas. Designated 
areas are determined by the Department Director in accordance to Arizona State Law. This 
prohibition includes all forms of tobacco and e-cigarettes. This restriction applies to all 
employees. 

 
SECTION 22 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
If an employee has a problem concerning a work-related matter, it should be discussed frankly 
with their supervisor. Normally, this discussion should occur within three (3) to five (5) days of 
the incident, or in a timely manner. 

 
If an employee is not satisfied after discussing the problem with their supervisor, or if it is 
inappropriate to go to the supervisor, the employee should take their problem to higher levels 
within the department or a representative of the Human Resources Department. Should the 
employee desire further resolution, they should speak with the Town Manager who will make 
the final determination. 

 
SECTION 23- ELECTRONIC DEVICE COMMUNICATION AND USAGE 

 
1. GENERAL 

 
The purpose of this Policy for the use of the Internet, Electronic Communications and Other 
Technology (the “Policy”) is to give users of the Town electronic communication systems clear 
guidance on what can and cannot be done with such systems. Failure to follow this policy can 
result in violations of the law, costly fines and penalties, expensive lawsuits and judgments, and 

otherwise impair the Town’s ability to conduct its affairs; therefore, it is critical to strictly follow 
this Policy. 

 
Electronic communications include, but are not limited to, electronic mail, instant messaging, 
access to and use of the Internet, Town-run networks and websites, network services, facsimile 
(fax), file transfers, electronic data interchange, audio and video teleconferencing, voice mail, 
telephone systems and wireless technologies such as personal digital assistants (PDA’s), 
cellular phones and pagers. 

 
“Electronic communication system” or “System” as referred to in this policy is any system which 
is necessary or desirable to support the Town electronic communications, which is owned, 
leased or otherwise contracted for by the Town, or which is being used to access the Town’s 
electronic communications or otherwise being used in furtherance of the Town’s business, 
whether or not owned or leased by the Town, including such equipment that is owned or leased 
by an individual user. 

 
This Policy applies to all employees, representatives and agents of the Town and any other users 
of the Electronic Communication System (collectively referred to as “Users”). 



26  

 
2. INTENDED USE 

 
The Electronic Communication System is intended primarily for use in connection with the 
Town’s mission and related services. 

 
3. NO EXPECTATION OF PRIVACY 

 
All computer files, documents, and software created or stored on the Town’s System are subject 
to review and inspection at any time. Employees should not assume that any such information 
is confidential, including e-mail either sent or received. The Town may also disclose the contents 
of a User’s electronic communications or data to third parties without prior notice to or consent 
of the User. The Town will also respond to legal process, complaints or use in violation of this 
Policy and fulfill its obligations to third parties. For that reason, Users do not have the same 
expectation of privacy in their use of the Electronic Communication System as with personally- 
owned, non-Electronic Communication Systems, and communication tools. Users should not 
expect privacy, and Users should structure their electronic communications in recognition of the 
fact that the Town may from time to time examine the content of electronic communications. 
Moreover, the deletion of a message or document may not fully eliminate such message or 
document from the Town computer network. All Users waive any right to privacy in their use of 
the Electronic Communication System and consent to access and disclosure of such 
documents/messages by authorized Town personnel. 

 
4. OWNERSHIP 

 
All electronic communications and data that are created, sent, received, stored and/or accessed 
using the Electronic Communication Systems are Town property. All data and information 
created, sent, received, stored and/or accessed by employees of the Town during their 
employment by the Town, and which relates in any way to their employment by the Town, is the 
property of the Town, whether such data is stored or accessed using the Electronic 
Communication Systems, maintained in hard copy, or stored electronically on systems not 
belonging to the Town. Moreover, all hardware, infrastructure and software provided by the Town 
are owned by the Town. Computer equipment should not be removed from Town premises 
without written approval from a department head. Users are responsible for maintaining such 
property in good condition and shall return such property to the Town upon termination of its use 
or upgrade. 

 
Employee work hours are valuable and should be used for business. Excessive personal 
phone calls can significantly disrupt business operations. Employees should use their break or 
lunch period for personal phone calls. 

 
Confidential information should not be discussed on a cell phone or PDA (personal digital 
assistant). Phones and PDAs with cameras should not be used in a way that violates other 
Town guidelines such as, but not limited to, EEO/Sexual Harassment and Confidential 
Information. 

 
For safety reasons, employees should avoid the use of cell phones and PDAs to make calls 
while driving. Employees must park whenever they need to use a cell phone. Generally, 



27  

stopping on the shoulder of the road is not acceptable. Employees are prohibited from using a 
cell phone or other device to text while operating a motor vehicle. Texting is permitted only 
where the vehicle is at rest in a shoulder lane or lawfully parked. 

 
The Town telephone lines should not be used for personal long-distance calls. 

 
5. SECURITY OBLIGATIONS 

 
A. The goal of information system security is to protect information from unauthorized or 

inappropriate access or modification. The Town will maintain a system of information 
security to protect its proprietary data. An integral part of this system is the policies, 
standards and procedures set forth below. All Users must adhere to these policies, 
standards and procedures for the Electronic Communication System to remain viable 
and should immediately report any suspected, attempted or actual security violations or 
breaches. 

B. Users must take appropriate care to safeguard the security and integrity of the 
Electronic Communication System and not deliberately interfere with the Town access 
to data stored on the System or deliberately circumvent the Towns security procedures. 
Users should not add additional security, such as passwords, to their workstations or 
files without prior consent of the Department Head or Town Manager. 

C. Users are prohibited from using the System in any manner that creates an unreasonable 
risk of permitting unauthorized outside access to the Electronic Communication System. 
Persons who are not authorized Users may not be given access to, and are not 
permitted to use, the Electronic Communication System unless such access or use has 
been approved in advance by the employees Department Head. If approved, then those 
persons (including contractors and temporary employees) are subject to this Policy. 

D. Users shall not share centrally-administered passwords. In emergency or unusual 
situations, sharing of passwords for applications with a trusted coworker is permitted. 
Questions about sharing passwords should be directed to the Department Head. Users 
must inform their supervisor of any password necessary to obtain access to any security 
or “lock down” application (such as screen savers, BIOS passwords, etc.) when they 
are absent while their computer or application requires repair or maintenance. 

E. Users shall identify themselves to the system by signing on with their assigned user 
name. Users shall not misrepresent, obscure, suppress or replace a user’s identity on 
an Electronic Communication System. The user name, electronic mail address, instant 
messenger (“IM”) mail address, Town affiliation and related information included with 
electronic messages or postings must reflect the actual originator of the messages or 
postings. 

F. Since viruses are often transmitted through e-mail attachments, before opening an 
attachment, Users should verify through the use of Town approved anti-virus software 
that the attachment does not contain any viruses (such anti-virus software must be 
installed and kept active at all times on all computers used in connection with the 
System). Also, when accessing an attachment, Users should always save the attached 
document to disk or the hard drive, rather than opening it directly. While some file 
attachments are just web pages or external text files, others are programs, some of 
which may contain viruses. Be particularly careful with any files that have “.exe”, “.vbs.”, 
“.scr” extensions, especially when receiving file attachments from unknown sources. 



28  

Before downloading and opening any file from the Internet, the User should scan the 
file for viruses. The same precautions should be taken with respect to other storage 
media including diskettes. 

G. Users shall use the Electronic Communication System in a manner which does not 
compromise the security and integrity of the Town’s network, such as allowing intruders 
or viruses into the Town’s network. When using any computer attached to the Town’s 
network, users shall not access the Internet except through a Town approved Internet 
firewall. Users shall not access the Internet directly, whether through a modem or 
otherwise, unless their accessing computer is disconnected from the Town’s network. 

H. Information sent using instant messaging is analogous to sending a postcard -- the 
information cannot be encrypted and is easily intercepted-- and as such is not secure. 
If a user accesses an instant messaging service using the system, the user shall select 
and use a user name that corresponds to their Town assigned e-mail address. 

I. Any security breach substantiated or not, must be reported to the Internet Supervisor’s 
Office. 

 
6. CONTENT OF MESSAGES 

 
A. Users of the Electronic Communication System are expected to use common sense 

and good judgment, taking into account that the very nature of such systems allows for 
messages to be forwarded quickly and accidentally to the wrong person. It is particularly 
important that Users apply this practice in what they say in the content of their electronic 
messages and in their access of the internet. Assume that your message may be 
accessed, forwarded and read or heard by someone other than the intended recipient - 
- even if it is marked as “private”. Also, Users should not intentionally access any site 

that is inappropriate for the Town, or which could cause embarrassment to the Town or 
the User. While not every standard can be listed here, the following are some common 
examples to guide your use of the System: 
1. Electronic communications should not contain sensitive, critical, confidential or 

proprietary information, unless encrypted or otherwise secured according to 
standards established by the Town, and even then, limited only to necessary 
recipients. 

2. Acts that might create a “hostile environment”: Use of the System in a way that 
violates the Town Employee Manual; or to disseminate or intentionally access 
material that is defamatory, sexually oriented, obscene, pornographic, harassing, 
threatening, illegal, fraudulent, offensive or unwelcome to coworkers is expressly 
prohibited. 

3. Unauthorized use or copying of software, copyrighted materials or of information 
belonging to others. Use of the System for unauthorized copying of copyrighted 
software or content is expressly prohibited. Similarly, proprietary information 
belonging to others must not be placed on the System without the prior written 
approval of the Town Manager. 

4. If a User receives notice, in writing or otherwise, or becomes aware that the 
Electronic Communication System is being or is proposed to be used to create, 
disseminate, store, upload or download any messages, communications or other 
material in violation of the copyrights, trademarks, patents, intellectual property or 
other property rights of any party, such User shall inform the Town Manager in writing 



29  

of such use or proposed use. The Town reserves the right to remove or disable 
access to any material that is claimed to be infringing or to be the subject matter of 
infringing activity. 

5. The U.S. and some other countries prohibit the transfer of certain technical data 
without an export license. No such transfers should be done through the Electronic 
Communication System without proper approval. 

6. The System may not be used for political or social announcements not directly 
connected with the Town unless such announcements are placed in areas 
specifically designated for that purpose or prior approval by the Department Head 
has been obtained. 

B. The System may not be used to send unsolicited advertising, junk, or chain e-mail 
messages (also known as “spam”). When sending out bulk e-mail (where one message 
is sent to numerous recipients): 
1. Ensure that all recipients have requested to receive such communications from the 

Town (for example, by filling out a registration form); 
2. Follow e-mail service provider’s policies or terms and conditions; 
3. Label advertisements with “ADV” in the subject line; 
4. Ensure that all information in the text and header are accurate, including the e-mail’s 

point of origin; 
5. Ensure that the e-mail is sent with proper routing and transmission; 
6. Use the “bcc” field rather than the “to” or “cc” fields to list recipients’ e-mail 

addresses; 

7. Include in the body of the message the sender’s name, address and e-mail address 
and clear and conspicuous instructions for how to request to be removed from 
themailing list and remove all recipients who have opted out from all mailing lists used by 
the Town; and 

8. Send a copy of all such e-mail messages to the Town Manager. 
9. Unsolicited electronic mail or communications received from unknown sources 

should be promptly discarded without forwarding to anyone and/or without 
responding in any manner to the originator. 

 
7. ADDITIONAL USER OBLIGATIONS 

 
A. In order to conserve limited resources, files that are not Town related should not be 

stored on the Town’s network servers. The Town has no responsibility to provide copies 
of personal data to employees leaving the Town. 

B. Access to the Town’s internal computer networks using non-Town provided computers 
or PDAs, including access from remote locations such as employee homes, hotel rooms 
and affiliates, must in all instances be approved in advance by each individual 
Department Head. Such remote access may be revoked at any time for any reason, 
including failure to comply with the Town’s security policies. 

C. Users placing information on the Internet relating to the Town or in the course of 
performing his/her employment duties are, in effect, publishing such information on the 
Town’s behalf. Only authorized personnel shall engage in such publishing activities, 
other than the sending or receiving of e-mail. Authorized personnel shall observe all 
existing standards, policies and regulations regarding materials published on the Town’s 
behalf, and shall establish accountability for all information regarding the Town’s mission 



30  

or publications posted on the Internet for public access, including postings on electronic 
bulletin boards, chat rooms and information obtained “hyperlinks” to externally stored 
information. In no event shall a User represent his or her personal opinions as those of 
the Town or misrepresent oneself as another individual, or Town. No materials are to 
be placed on the Town’s website without the approval of the Town Manager. No new 
websites shall be developed without the prior written approval of the Town Manager. 

D. The Town permits the occasional personal use of the Electronic Communication System 
by Users, however, Users should understand that personal use (a) must not in any way 
interfere with or impede the Town’s mission, (b) must be occasional and minor, (c) must 
be promptly discontinued at the request of the Town, and (d) is expressly subject to all 
of the provisions in this Policy, as well as all other applicable Town policies and 
guidelines. 

E. Use of the systems for “recreational” uses (non-business Internet access, games, 
music, talk radio stations, etc.) is prohibited when engaging in such activity interferes 
with an employee’s job duties, violates the Town Employee Manual, or interferes with 
the efficient functioning of the System. 

F. All software used in connection with the System must be authorized by, or acquired 
through, the Department Head. The Town complies with all software copyrights and the 
terms of all software licenses. Users may not duplicate licensed software or related 
documentation or download such material unless the license agreement expressly 
allows for such use and the Information Services Office approves. The Town reserves 
the right to remove any unauthorized software from any Town owned equipment or any 
personally-owned equipment on the Town’s premises. The Town reserves the right to 
conduct audits of the System to ensure that the Town and its Users are in compliance 
with all applicable software licenses and internal policies. Users are expressly 
prohibited from downloading or transmitting unauthorized or unlicensed software from 
the Internet or other sources onto the System. The downloading of “freeware” or 
“shareware” from the Internet is also prohibited unless approved by the Department 
Head. 

 
SECTION 24- CREDIT CARDS 

 
Town issued credit cards shall not be used for any purpose to conduct transactions without the 
prior written approval of the Department Head or Town Manager. Credit card use will be in 
compliance with the Town’s Financial Polices and Procedures. 

 
SECTION 25- VEHICLE USE POLICY 

 
1. GENERAL 

 
Provides for the administration ofThis policy governs the use of Town vehicles and privately-
owned vehicles when used by employees of the Town to conduct Town business. All vehicles 
(Town and privately- owned) must have a copy of vehicle insurance and registration in the 
vehicle before it can be driven. 

 
A. Employees must follow all laws while using Town-Owned owned vehicles, cannot 

transport any unauthorized person(s), and cannot use mobile devices while operating 



31  

the vehicle. 
B. This policy governs the use of all Town owned vehicles and private vehicles used for 

town related business. 
C. This policy limits all use of town Town-owned vehicles and privately-owned vehicles 

used for town Town business, to properly licensed town Town employees and officials 
who have obtained appropriate authorization for that use. 

D. Employees are required to annually provide proof of a valid driver’s license to the Clerk 
if they are performing any work-related travel, either in private or public vehicles. 

E. Department Heads are responsible to the town Town manager for a full accounting of all 
town Town vehicles usage and/or private vehicles used for business related purposes. 

 
2. TOWN OWNED VEHICLES: 

 
Town O-owned Vehicles must be used for town Town related business only. 

 
A. All municipal vehicles shall be parked at the end of each work shift in assigned parking 

areas. 
B. The assignment of Town Vehicles during work time use is based upon job 

responsibilities. Department Heads that have municipal vehicles available for this 
purpose may assign such vehicles in a manner consistent with workload and employee 
function. 

C. The use of all town Town vehicles assigned to the Police or Fire department is 
administered by those Chiefs in accordance with current Arizona Revised Statutes. 
Proper authorization is required for use of all town Town-owned vehicles. 

D. The Department Head is responsible for the town Town vehicle use, including ensuring 
that employees keep vehicles clean and no abuse of the vehicle occurs. 

E. No town Town vehicle, except those authorized for commuting purposes, are to be 
taken home at the end of shift, without written authorization by the Town Manager and 
department head on an exception basis when it is related to business travel. 

 
SECTION 26- WORKERS COMPENSATION 

 
1. REPORTING OF INJURY 

 
Every job-related injury or illness, regardless of severity, must be reported immediately to the 
supervisor, TriageNow contacted, and a written report prepared and submitted to the Town 
Clerk. 

 
During those periods when workers compensation is not providing pay it must be charged to the 
employee’s accrued sick leave or vacation leave if all sick leave has been exhausted. 

 
An employee receiving temporary disability payments pursuant to workers compensation may 
supplement these payments through use of accumulated sick leave in order to continue to 
maintain his or her regular income. However, all employees receiving full salary in lieu of 
temporary disability payments shall remit any funds received under workers compensation to 
the Town. 

 



32  

2. RETURN TO DUTY 
 

A certification from a licensed physician or practitioner allowing an individual to return to work is 
required for any absence, due to illness or injury, when it is determined by the Department Head 
that one is necessary to establish that an employee is fit to perform the essential functions of 
his/her position. 

 
3. INSURANCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Employees on special leaves without pay are responsible for the payment of their portion of the 
insurance premium. Each such employee must make the premium payment directly to the 
Finance Director in order to continue coverage. 

 
SECTION 27- CONSTRUCTIVE DISCHARGE 

 
Employees are encouraged to communicate to the Town whenever they believe working 
conditions may become intolerable to them and may cause them to resign. Under Section 23- 
1502, Arizona Revised Statutes, an employee may be required to notify an appropriate 
representative of the Town in writing that a working condition exists that the employee believes 
is intolerable, that will compel the employee to resign, or that constitutes a constructive 
discharge, if the employee wants to preserve the right to bring a claim against the Town 
alleging that the working condition forced the employee to resign. 

Under the law, an employee may be required to wait for fifteen (15) calendar days after 
providing written notice before the employee may resign if the employee desires to preserve 
the right to bring a constructive discharge claim against the Town. An employee may be 
entitled to [specify: paid or unpaid] leave of absence of up to fifteen (15) calendar days while 
waiting for the Town’s response to the employee's written communication about the employee's 
working condition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT 
I HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THE EMPLOYEE MANUAL DATED (DATE). I 
UNDERSTAND THAT I AM TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH ITS CONTENTS. FURTHER, I 
UNDERSTAND: 

 
 EMPLOYMENT WITH THE TOWN IS AT-WILL. I HAVE THE RIGHT TO END MY 

WORK RELATIONSHIP WITH THE TOWN, WITH OR WITHOUT ADVANCE NOTICE 



33  

FOR ANY REASON. THE TOWN HAS THE SAME RIGHT. 
 

 THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS MANUAL AND ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS OF 
MANAGEMENT ARE NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF 
EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, NOR ARE THEY A GUARANTEE 
OF EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIC DURATION. 

 
 THE MANUAL IS NOT ALL INCLUSIVE, BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE ME WITH A 

SUMMARY OF SOME OF THE TOWN’S GUIDELINES. 
 

 THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED MANUALS. THE NEED MAY 
ARISE TO CHANGE THE GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE MANUAL, EXCEPT FOR 
THE AT-WILL NATURE OF EMPLOYMENT. THE TOWN THEREFORE RESERVES 
THE RIGHT TO INTERPRET THEM OR TO CHANGE THEM, ALONG WITH ANY 
OTHER PROCEDURES, PRACTICES, BENEFITS, OR OTHER PROGRAMS OF THE 
TOWN, WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE. 

 
 NO REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN, OTHER THAN THE TOWN MANAGER, HAS 

THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT FOR ANY 
SPECIFIED PERIOD AND SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING, SIGNED BY 
THE TOWN MANAGER AND ME. WE HAVE NOT ENTERED INTO SUCH AN 
AGREEMENT. 

 
 

 
Employee Signature Date 

 
 

Employee Name 
 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE MANUAL 
 
 
I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Town of Springerville Employee Manual. I understand 
and agree that it is my responsibility to read, understand and comply with the policies in this Manual. I 
further understand that a violation of any policies contained herein could result in my immediate 
termination. I understand that this Manual supersedes and replaces any inconsistent written or verbal 
statements of Town policy or procedures. 
 
I understand that this Manual may be revised, deleted, and added to from time to time with or without 
notice. I acknowledge that all such revisions, deletions, and additions to the Manual will be in writing, and 
changes can only be made if approved in writing by the Town Manager with Town Council approval. I also 
understand that any delay or failure by the Town to enforce any rule, regulation, or procedure contained in 
the Manual does not constitute a waiver on behalf of the Town or affect the right of the Town to enforce 
such rule, regulation, or procedure in the future. I further acknowledge that no oral or written statement or 
representation by a supervisor, manager, or any other employee can change the provisions of the Manual. 



34  

 
I understand that this Manual does not, and is not intended to, create contractual obligations with respect 
to any matters and that it does not create a contract guaranteeing that I will be employed for any specific 
time period with the Town. Employment with the Town is at-will employment, but Town employees are 
entitled to all rights and responsibilities afforded under this Manual, including but not limited to a pre-
dismissal hearing.  
 
I have read and understood the policies contained in this Manual and agree to abide by these policies 
during my employment. If I have any questions about the content or interpretation of this Manual, I will 
contact the Town’s _______________. 
 
____________________________    ____________________________ 
Employee’s Name      Employee’s Signature 
 
_____________________________ 
Date Signed 
 
 
 

TO BE PLACED IN EMPLOYEE’S PERSONNEL FILE 
 



TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:   Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
DATE:    4/17/2024  
SUBJECT: Fair Housing Month 

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

 

I move we proclaim April 2024 fair housing month in the Town of 

Springerville.  

 

Or I move we do not approve this item.  

 

Or I move we table this item.  

 

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

Please see attached proclamation.  This is a requirement of CDBG 

annually.  

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  



 

Fair Housing Proclamation 
2024 

WHEREAS, The National Fair Housing Law of 1986, as amended by 

the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 prohibits discrimination 

in housing and declares it a national policy to provide within 

constitutional limits, for fair housing in the United States; and 
  

WHEREAS, the principle of Fair Housing is not only national law and 

national policy but a fundamental human concept and entitlement for 

all Americans; and 
 

WHEREAS, April has traditionally been designated as Fair Housing 

Month in the United States; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Shelly Reidhead do proclaim April 

2024 as Fair Housing Month in the Town of Springerville and do 

hereby urge all citizens of this community comply with the letter and 

spirit of the Fair Housing Law. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 

      Shelly Reidhead, Mayor 
      Town of Springerville 
 
 
 
 

Signed this             day of April 2024 

 






























